
Millinocket
Maine’s Biggest Small Town

FY22 ANNUAL REPORT

Millinocket.org I (207) 723-7000 197 Penobscot Avenue, Millinocket, ME 04462



Millinocket
Maines Biggest Small Town

From the Desk of the Town Manager:

Fiscal year 2022 marked a significant transition for the Town of Millinocket as I assumed the role of

Town Manager. My onboarding process involved invaluable discussions with outgoing Interim Town

Manager, Richard Angotti, who generously shared insights into ongoing projects and operational

practices. His support proved instrumental as I navigated my new responsibilities. I was grateful for the

collaborative spirit demonstrated by our department heads and staff; their support affirmed that our

municipal team operated effectively and cohesively. In particular, Lori Santerre, Diana Lakeman, and

Mary Alice Cullen provided crucial guidance during my initial weeks. Additionally, our collaboration with

former/retired Town Manager, Peggy Daigle, proved to be beneficial, enhancing my understanding of

the technical aspects of municipal governance.

Throughout the year, we progressed with our Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) initiatives,

notably the Veterans Park project. We received the green light to enhance the park with new lighting

and electrical outlets, significantly benefiting community events. We coordinated with Haley Ward to

establish a timeline for these improvements and implemented the work.

Our Wastewater “Main Pump Station Upgrade” project began. This will provide critical work on the final

piece of Millinocket’s town-wide sewer system upgrades that have been ongoing for quite some time. A

$1 million ARPA grant was awarded to the town toward with project and will be accompanied by a bond

to complete the funding package.

In our efforts to enhance transparency and community engagement we launched the Town of

Millinocket VouTube channel, where recordings of Council and committee meetings became accessible.

This initiative received positive feedback from residents. Additionally, our inaugural newsletter, “The

Magic City Monthly,” was also well received, allowing us to communicate vital information directly to

our community. We continue to encourage residents to subscribe and receive regular updates directly

from the Town.

The Town Council and Administrative team excitedly announced the appointment of Amber Wheaton as

the town’s Community Initiatives Director. Amber made strides in engaging with community members

and exploring funding opportunities for various projects. We were also thrilled to report that our

application for a Climate Resiliency Grant was approved, providing $50,000 for the installation of heat

pumps in municipal buildings, which had a positive impact on our budget. The future of this program is

bright!
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Millinocket
Maines Biggest Small Town

As we move forward, we remain committed to fostering community involvement and addressing the

needs of our residents. We continue to pursue innovative projects and maintain open lines of

communication with our community. Together, we aim to enhance the quality of life in Millinocket and

ensure a vibrant future for all residents. I express my gratitude for the continued support and

engagement from the community.

Respectfully,

Peter Jamieson, Town Manager
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FY2I/22 DIRECTORY OF MUNICIPAL OFFICERS AND OFFICIALS

TOWN COUNCIL SEALER OF WEIGHTS & MEASURES
Steve Golieb 2021-2024 State of Maine
Michael Madore 2021-2024
Cody McEwen 2019-2022
Jane Danforth 2020-2023 GENERAL ASSISTANCE DIRECTOR
Louis Pelletier 2020-2023 Lou Santerre 1997-Indef
Charles Pray 2019-2022
Mattnew Bragdon 2020-2023

BOARD OF APPEALS
KrysUe Garand 2020-2023

SCHOOL BOARD Michael Jewers 2019-2022
Warren Steward 2021-2024 Charles Cirame tExp red 3/2022 2019-2022
Hillary Emery 2019-2022 Terrance Leavitt 2019-2022
Donald E. Raymond 2021-2023 Dan Bernard 2021-2024
Kevin Gregory tAppointed 12/21 2021-2022 Richard Antotti 2022-2025
Peter A. Jamieson *Resinged 12/21 2019-2022
Matthew Ayotte *Resinged 8/2021 2020-2023 CEMETERY COMMITTEE
Michelle Brundrett *Resigned 6/21 2020-2023 Joel Neal Sr. 201 7-2022
Erika Mackin *Appointed 1/22 - *Resinged 6/22 James Nyman 2017-2022

Linda Campbell 2017-2022
TOWN MANAGER Francis Megno 2017-2022
Richard W. Angotti Jr.*Interirn Mngr 112021-1/22 Robert Healey 2021-2026
Peter A. Jamieson Hire Date:1/4/22

BOARD OF ASSESSMENT REVIEW
TREASURER James Kelley, Jr. 2021 -2024
Mary Alice Gullen 2015-Indef. George Martin Jr. 2019-2022

Amy Cyr 2019-2022
SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS
Josh McNaughton 20-Indef.

PERSONNEL APPEALS BOARD
Anthony Filauro 2019-2022

ASSESSOR James Lawrence 2020-2023
Lorna Thompson 201 9-Indef. Randy Newcombe 2021-2022

FIRE CHIEF PLANNING BOARD
Thomas Malcolm 2019-Indef. Albert Berube tExpired 10/21 2016-2021

Charles Cirame 2019-2024
POLICE CHIEF Jon Crawford 2020-2025
Cameron McDunnah Coritrl2/21l20 2020-2023 Avern Danforth 2020-2025

Anthony Filauro (Chair) 2019-2024
Thomas Malcom 2021-2026

TAX COLLECTOR Heidi Wneatcn 2021-2026
Sharon Cyr *HiFe 8)4)2020 2020-Indef. Michelle Anderson 2020-2025

Michael Wallace (ALT) 2022-2027
TOWN CLERK
Diana M. Lakeman 2017-lndef,



CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICER RECREATION ADVISORY COMMITTEE
Richard W. Angotti Jr,Resignedl)22 2021-2022 Thomas Malcolm 2021-2024
Evan Campbell 2/22-11/22 Richard Rideout 2021-2024

Robin Stevens 2019-2022
DOG CONSTABLE Warren Steward 2021-2024
Lorri Haskell 2014-Indef. Brennan Turner 2020-2023

lan Shearer 2022-2025
ELECTRICAL INSPECTOR Stephanie Jamieson 2020-2023
Jon Crawford 1996-Indef. Josh McNaughton (Alternate) Exp*8/21 2018-2021

Sam Hiscoe (ALT) 2021-2024
HEALTH OFFICER
Thomas Malcolm 2019-2022

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS
Diana M. Lakeman 2021-2023

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR
Ralph Soucier 2011-Indef.

PERSONNEL DIRECTOR
RECREATION DIRECTOR Lori Santerre 1997-Indef.
Jody Nelson 2016-Inde{

PLUMBING INSPECTOR
WASTEWATER DIRECTOR Richard W. Angotti Jr (2020-2021)2 2020-2021
James Charette 2001-Indef, Michael Wallace Temporary-Mngr Appt Apr-22



DIRECTORY OF COMMITTEES AND COMMISSONS
July 1,2021 - June 30, 2022

Town Council: 7 Membersl3 Year Term
Steve Golieb/Chair — 249;5786/ s golieb©mdlinocket.org
Michael Madore - 723-8937/ mmadore@miIlinocket.org
Cody McEwen — 731-8023/ c.mcewen©millinocket.org
Charles Pray — 731-4017/ c.pray©millinocket.org
Louis Pelletier — 723-5460/ l.pelletier@millinocket.org
Matthew Bragdon — 447-0006/ m.bragdon©millinocket.org
Jane Danforth — 723-5288/ j.danforthmillinocketorg

School Board: 5 Membersl3 Year Term
Warren Steward— 723-5491/ wsteward©niillinocketschools.org
Donald Raymond - 723-3665/ draymondmillinocketschools.org
Kevin Gregory -Appointed 12/21- 723-5178/kgregory@millinocketschoolsorg
Resigned 6/22 - Michelle Brundrett — 356-8336/ rnbrundrettemillinokcetschools.org
Resinged 6/22 - Erika Makin -Appointed 1/22 - (845)699-4783/ emackin@milIinocketschools.org
Resigned 12/21- Peter Jamieson - 965-9603/ pjamieson@millinocketschools.org

Board of Assessment Review: 3 Membersl3 Year Term
George Martin — 723-4078/447-1290/ georgehmartin©aol.com
Amy Cyr — 447-07801 acyr3485©gmail.com
James Kelley, Jr. — 723-1749/jim©kelleyfarms.com

Board of Appeals: 5 Members/3 Year Term
Charles Cirame Expired 3/22 — 723-8700/ charliel@beeline-online.net
Michael Jewers — 723-9627/ jewersca©hotmail.com
Terrance Leavitt — 723-1169 day/723-8845 night
Krystle Garand— 731-4563/ krystlelee59gmailcom
Dan Bernard — 447-9704/ dancmamaine@gmail.com
Richard Angoffi - 217-0385/ richard.angotti©gmailcom

Planning Board: 7 Membersl2 Alternates/5 Year Term
Anthony Filauro — 723-9401/ filauroa@yahoo.com
Tom Malcolm — 447-0911/ chiefmalcolm@millinocket.org
Jon Crawford — 447-1628/jonyac©aol.com
Avern Danforth — 723-9536/ danforthabmyfairpoint.net
Charles Cirame — 723-8700/ charliel@beeline-online.net
Michelle Anderson — 447-8028/ mbanderson@startmail.com
Heidi Wheaton - 254-9653/ heidijwheaton©yahoo.com
Michael Wallace (ALT) 205-8021/ S8wallace@grnail.com
Alternate - Vacant Seat

Personnel Appeals Board: 3 Members/3 Year Term
Anthony Filauro — 723-9401/ filauroa@yahoo.com
James Lawrence — 380-3624/ jigmaringoutlook.com
Randy Newcombe — 207-992-2222/ ydnar723gmailcom



Recreation Advisory Committee: 7 MembersIl Alternatel3 Year Term
Thomas Malcolm —723-4193/ chiefmalcolm@millinocketorg
Richard Rideout — 723-8497/ rideoutr@hotmaiI.com
Robin Stevens — 723-5465/ robins93©myfairpointnet
Warren Steward — 723-5491/ gangleader@gwi.net
Ian Shearer— 723-6399/ ian©tbcmillinocket.org
Brennan Turner— 828-674-6164
Stephanie Jamieson — 447-8619/ stephanieshorey©gmail.com
Sam Hiscoe (ALT) - 723-6425/ shiscoe@millinocketschooIs.org
Resigned- Josh McNaughton (ALT) —21 5-1435/ jmcnaughton@miIlinocketschools.org

Cemetery Committee: 5 Membersl5 Year Term
Linda Campbell — 723-8418
Robert Healey — 207-570-2161/ behmilll 942@gmailcorn
Joel Neal Sr. — 723-9049
Francis Mengo — 723-8238
James Nyman — 723-5559

EMERGENCY 911
FIRE CHIEF - Thomas Malcolm

POLICE CHIEF - Cameron McDunnah 911
(NON EMERGENCY) 723-9731
Animal Control Officer - Loin Haskell 723-9731

CODE ENFORCEMENT-Richard Angotti

TOWN MANAGER
Richard Angotti (INT) End Date:1/3/2022
Peter Jarnieson - Start Date: 1/3)2022

TOWN FAX

TAX ASSESSOR - Lorna Thompson

TOWN CLERK - Diana M. Lakeman

TAX COLLECTOR - Sharon Cyr

PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR - Ralph Soucier

RECREATION DIRECTOR- Jody Nelson

SOLID WRSTE DIRECTOR- Ralph Soucien

WASTEWATER DIRECTOR- James Charette

GENERAL ASSISTANCE- Lou Santerre

TREASURER - Mary Alice Cullen

723-7026/ chiefmaIcolm@millinocket.org

723-7005

723-7000 Ext 5) manager©millinocketorg

723-7002

723-7005/ assessor@miIlinocket.org

723-7007/ towncIerk@niillinocket.org

723-7006/ laxcolIector@millinocket.org

723-7030/ publicworksmiIlocket.org

746-3553/ jodynelsongwi.net

723-7037/ publicworks©millocket.org

723-7040/ wastewater@rniIlinocket.org

723-7000 Ext. 2/ humanresourse@millinocketorg

723-7000 Ext 4) treasurer@miIlinocket.org



AIRPORT DIRECTOR- Jeffrey Campbell 723-6649/ airport@miIlinocket.org

SUPERINTENDENT OF SCHOOLS 723-6400/ jmcnaughton@miIlinocketschools.org
Joshua McNaughton



REPORT OF THE TOWN CLERK

The following Vital Records were recorded during Fiscal Year 202 1/2022:

BIRTHS TO MILLINOCKET RESIDENTS: 23
In Bangor: 20
In Millinocket:
In Dover-Foxcroft: I

Non-Residents in Millinocket:
East Millinocket: I

DEATHS: 112
Residents in Millinocket: 52 Residents in Togus USVA: 0
Residents in Bangor: 13
Residents in Brewer:
Residents in Brunswick: I
Residents in Dover-Fox: 3
Residents in Howland: 2
Residents in Lincoln: 2
Residents in Otis: 1
Residents in Portland: 3
Residents in Waterville: I
Residents in Wells: 1

Non-Residents in Millinocket: Non-Residents in Indian Purchase TWPS:
Baldwin: 1 Haverhill. MA:
Cary Plantation: 1
Crystal:
Dixmont:
East Millinocket: 9
Medway: 5
Patten: 5
Reed Plantation: I
Sherman: 3
Silver Ridge Twp: I
Stacyville:
Veazie:
Rochdale, MA: I



MARRIAGES:
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents
Residents

in Millinocket: 17
in Bangor:
in Dedharn:
in Corinth: I
in East Mlkt: 3
in Farmington: I
in Medway: 2
in Hampden: 1
in Herman: 2
in Lincoln:
in Old Town: I

Residents in Surry:
Residents in Waterville:
Residents in Westbrook:
Residents in Windham:

Non-Residents
Non-Residents

DOG LICENSES: 606
Dogs: 601
Kennel(s): 0

Service: 5 Dangerous:O

MISCELLANEOUS LICENSES:
Victualer’s: 19
Entertainment: 9
3-Day Peddlers: 0
90-Day Peddlers: 19
D!B/A: 7

License and Registration totals for each month: FY21/22
GAME LICENSES BOAT REGS ATV REGS SNOWMOBILE

July
August
September
October
November
December
January
February
March
April
May
June
Totals

12
8

21
17

4
184
26
13
4

33
29
14

341

67
21

6
3
0

14

II
9

99

139
611

71
24

9
8
3
2
7

1
3
1

41
52

217

0
0
0

13
27

208
128
37
11
0
0
0

424

38

in ti11inocket: 2
in Indian Purchase Twp: 1

Respectfully submitted, Diana M. Lakeman, Town Clerk



REPORT OF THE REGISTRAR OF VOTERS

Voter registration enrollments were accepted during regular business hours as well as when the
polls were open.
Three elections were held during FY2I/22. The School Budget Validation Referendum election
was held on July 20111, 2021, the General Referendum and Municipal Elections were held on
November 21(1, 2021, and the Primary Election was held on June 14, 2022. The breakdown as of
June 30, 2022, of the total number of Registered Voters for the Town of Millinocket and the
Penobscot and Piscataquis Unorganized Territories is as follows:

RESIDENTS OF: TOWN OF UNORGANIZED TOWNSHIPS
MILLINOCKET

Democratic Party 1102 105
Republican Party 971 96
Green Independent 95 6
Un-enrolled Voters 1112 125
Ineligible —Age Pending 1 0

Total Registered Voters 3281 332

Respectfully submitted,

Diana M. Lakeman
Town Clerk



STATE OF MAINE

OFFICE OF THE GOVERNOR

I STATE HOUSE STATION

AUGUSTA, MAINE

04333-000 I

For four years it has been my privilege to guide our great state, working with the Legislature to

keep Maine people safe and put our economy on a path to recovery.

Since the arrival of’ the COVID-l9 vaccines in December 2020, we have worked hard to get as
many shots into the arms of Maine people as quickly as possible. Since the COVID-19 vaccine
became available, more than a million Maine people have gotten fully vaccinated from COVID-19.
It is thanks to them that our state has one of highest vaccination rates and one of the lowest death
rates from COVID-19,despite having a much older population than other states. People are coming

to Maine because we are one of the safest states in the nation.

Following the recommendations of the Economic Recovery Committee, our economy has not
only fully recovered, but has surpassed pre-pandemic projections and unemployment claims have
dropped to pre-pandemic levels. And, last year, I was pleased to sign a balanced, bipartisan
budget that finally achieves the State’s commitment to 55 percent education funding, fully
restores revenue sharing, and expands property tax relief for Maine residents.

Maine can be proud of our nation-leading progress, but our work is far from done. Through the
Maine Jobs & Recovery Plan, we will continue to address our longstanding workforce shortage,
the expansion of broadband, education and job training opportunities, housing, child care, and
transportation. Drawing on the hard work and resilience of Maine people, together we will
rebuild our economy and rise from this unprecedented challenge a state that is stronger than ever.

In 2022, we focused on our economy, on our climate, on our kids, on keeping people safe
and on the health and welfare of all Maine people. We have persevered, and, while challenges
remain, we will get through them together. I am proud of the people of Maine, and I am proud to
he your Governor.

Thank you,

Mills
Governor

P1 lONE: (207) 287-3531 (Voice) 888-577-6690 (flY) FAX: (207) 287-1034

Dear Friends

wv. w. maine.gov



Harold ‘4Trey” Stewart 131st MAINE SENATE 3 State House Station
Senator, District 2 Augusta, ME 04333
Senate Republican Leader

January 1, 2023

Dear Friends and Neighbors:

It is an honor to represent you, your family, and the communities of District 2 in the Maine
Senate. I am grateful for the trust you have placed in me to work for the betterment of our
region.

In addition to serving my second term in the Maine State Senate, I was recently elected as
Senate Republican Leader. While some of the towns in District 2 have changed as a result of
redistricting, I know many of the important issues to those in rural Maine remain the same.

With a struggling economy and the cost of groceries, gas, home heating oil and electricity
increasing, Maine people and small businesses need relief from the high costs breaking their
budgets. Addressing the policies that have led to many of these high costs is a priority of
mine.

In addition to addressing the many important pieces of legislation that will be considered for
enactment this session, there is one item the Legislature is required to pass according to the
Constitution of Maine: a balanced, biennial budget. By June 30, 2023, the Governor must
submit and the Legislature must enact a balanced budget. This will require careful review of
current state spending and prioritizing our needs versus wants, just like you and I do with our
own budgets. As your State Senator, I will be working to find ways to lower taxes and rein in
state spending so that you can keep more of your hard-earned money.

Again, thank you for entrusting me with the privilege of representing your interests in
Augusta. Please feel free to contact me if you or a member of your family is having
difficulties navigating state bureaucracy. I can be reached by email at
trey.stewartlegislature.maine.gov or you can contact my office by phone at (207) 287-
1505.

Harold “Trey” Stewart III
State Senator

Sincerely,
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Dear Friends:

it is an honor to represent Maine in the U.S. Senate. 1 am grateful for the trust that Mainers have placed in
me and welcome this opportunity to share some key accomplishments for our state.

Last year, 1 secured more than $500 million for 285 projects from Aroostook County to York County that
will promote job creation, workforce training, and economic development; expand access to health care;
improve public safety, infrastructure, and community resources; and protect our environment. To address
the crisis of soaring inflation and high energy prices, I led efforts to provide $2 billion in supplemental
funds to the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program. in the new Congress that begins in 2023, 1
expect to be the Vice Chairman of the Appropriations Committee and will continue to champion
investments to support Maine’s communities and families.

Strengthening our economy and supporting good jobs remain a top priority. Along with the Governor and
the rest of the Maine Delegation and the associations representing the lobster industry, I worked to protect
our hardworking lobstermen and women by pausing for six years the onerous federal regulations that
jeopardize our lobster fishery’s very existence. Another ongoing threat to Maine’s small businesses is the
shortage of workers. That’s why I led an effort to push the Administration to nearly double the number of
I-l-2B visas that are critical to our hospitality industry. Additionally, when the Administration proposed to
cut the construction of a destroyer to be built by Bath Iron Works, I restored this funding to protect Maine
jobs and our national security.

When Maine Veterans’ Homes announced last year that it planned to close its facilities in Caribou and
Machias, I opposed that decision which would have had such a devastating effect on rural veterans and
their families. I am glad that the decision was reversed, and I have secured $3 million to help with
upgrades to these facilities. My AUTO for Vets Act also became law, which wifl help disabled veterans
maintain their independence by supporting the purchase of a new adaptive vehicle once a decade.

This past year, Congress demonstrated how effective it can be on behalf of the American people when both
parties work together. A few of the bipartisan achievements that I was involved in include the Respect for
MarriageAct, which will provide certainty to millions of loving couples in same-sex marriages while
protecting religious liberties, and the Electoral CountReform Act, which establishes clear guidelines for
our system of certifying and counting electoral votes for President and Vice President.

No one works harder than the people of Maine, and I have honored that work ethic by showing up for every
vote. During my Senate service, I have cast more than 8,500 consecutive votes, never having missed one.
I remain committed to doing all that I can to address your community’s concerns in 2023. If I may be of
assistance to you in any way, I encourage you to contact one of my six state offices.

Sincerely.

Susan M. Collins
United States Senator



January 1,2023
Dear Friends,

I’ve often thought that Maine is just one big small town connected by long roads. Well, in tile past year or two, those
roads have gotten steeper and bumpier as we dealt with all unprecedented pandemic and the resulting economic
troubles.

As we faced the historic challenges, something impressive happened. We came together and lent a hand to our
neighbors wherever we could to keep things running and spirits high.

Down in Washington, Congress tried to help Maine communities get through this struggle, so that our state would
come out stronger. To do that, we put in the work and set some things into motion that are already helping Maine
people. That’s why you hired us, after all.

The pandemic made something we’d known for a while clear: those roads and networks that connect our big town
needed repair, improvements, and expansion — from bridges to broadband. So, while Maine was uniting towards a
common purpose, Congress caine together to pass the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law — legislation that makes
generational investments in physical infrastructure, broadband connections, harbors, and the energy grid. These
efforts will lay the foundation for Maine’s 21” century economy and make sure even the most rural areas aren’t left
behind.

Over the last two years, as we drove up and down our state, you couldn’t help but see storefronts in trouble and prices
rising as the economy struggled through a global recession. And again, while you focused your efforts on getting
through the difficult times, Congress took meaningful action. We passed the American Rescue Plan in 2021, which
enabled Governor Mills and the state of Maine to better meet the health and economic difficulties of the pandemic. At
a critical moment it expanded healthcare eforts to confront COVID and invested in the state to keep the economy in
far better shape than most others nationwide.

Congress didn’t stop there. This year, we took even more concrete steps to cut costs, create jobs, and provide more
affordable, cleaner energy. The bipartisan CHIPSAct will bring home the manufacturing of the technical components
known as “chips” that are used in everything these days — from srnartphones to microwaves to cars — and in doing so
reduce prices and create good American jobs. We also passed the Inflation Reduction Ace (IRA) to lower healthcare
costs, allow Medicare to negotiate drug prices, and cut energy bills with new rebates for things like heat pumps and
solar panels.

Beyond these major investments, we also passed vital legislation to improve the day-to-day lives of Maine people and
Americans nationwide. On a bipartisan basis, we expanded health care for veterans exposed to toxins, strengthened
protections for marriage equality, supported Ukraine as it fought offa bloody Russian invasion, secured our elections
and the peaceful transfer of power, and delivered millions in federal investments to projects up and down our state.

So, as Maine worked to get through hard times, Congress took steps to support our state — and we’re already starting
to see brighter days ahead. I’m proud to have played a small part down here; it’s a true privilege to listen to you, work
with you, and build a brighter future for all the incredible people up and down the roads that connect our big small
town. Mary and I wish you a happy, and safe 2023.

Best Regards,

414/iANG S S. KING, J
United States Senator
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Jared Golden
Congress of the United States

2nd I)istrict of Maine
Dear Friends,

I hope this letter finds you safe and well. It’s an honor to continue serving as your representative in Congress, and I take the
responsibility very seriously. I appreciate the opportunity to update you on what I’ve been working on behalf of the people of the
Second Congressional District.

In August, 1 voted for the Inflation Reduction Act because it represented a dramatic turnaround from misguided efforts to pass
sweeping, ill-designed legislation that tried to accomplish too many things through budget gimmicks, setting up problematic fiscal
cliffs in numerous programs and refusing to make the difficult decisions to allow for a fiscally responsible bill.

The Inflation Reduction ,4 ci, which was signed into law by the president, was fiscally responsible and targeted four key priorities;
reducing our national debt and putting our country back on a more sustainable path, lowering the cost of prescription drugs, and
making health care more affordable, investing in an all-of-the-above energy strategy to significantly increase oil, gas, and
renewable energy production to lower energy costs for Americans, and cracking down on the tax avoidance of billion-dollar
multinational corporations. This bill was the first major legislation in the last decade to use the reconciliation process to create a
fiscally responsible budget to reduce deficits. The Congressional Budget Office estimated it would reduce deficits by
approximately $300 billion.

As a member of the House Armed Services Committee. I also helped pass the Fiscal Year 2023 National Defense Authorization
Act, which among other things, included key wins for Bath shipbuilders, UMaine, and servicemembers and their families. For
shipbuilders. the bill secured authorization for a third DDG-5 I destroyer; established a new contract for up to 15 DDG-5 I
destroyers over the next five years. many of which will be built at Bath Iron Works; and included funding for shipyard
infrastructure, The bill also authorized over $25 million for defense research programs, including UMaine’s large-scale
manufacturing program. Finally, the bill authorized a 4.6% pay increase to help servicemembers and their families deal with rising
costs dLIe to inflation.

Additionally, at the end of 2022, Congress passed a spending bill to fund the government through September of 2023. The bill
funds nearly $27 million in funding for community projects across the Second Congressional District, a lifeline for our lobster
industry that freezes any regulatory action for at least six years. and secures millions in additional funding for the Low Income
Housing Energy Assistance Program (LIHEAP) to help Mainers heat their homes.

Regardless of the year, one ofmy top priorities is ensuring I’m accessible to you. My staff and I can help answer qtiestions about
and navigate federal programs; find resources in Maine; and resolve issues with Medicare, Social Security, the VA. and other
federal agencies and programs. We are here to help:

• Caribou Office: 7 Hatch Drive, Suite 230. Caribou. ME 04736. Phone: (207) 492-6009
• Lewiston Office: 179 Lisbon Street, Lewislon, ME 04240. Phone: (207) 241-6767
• Bangor Office: 6 Slate Street, Suite 101, Bangor, ME 04401. Phone: (207) 249-7400

I look forward to building on momentum from recent legislative wins for Mainers and continuing to work on your behalf in 2023.
Do not hcsitate to reach out and voice an opinion on legislation, let us know about local events, or seek assistance navigating
federal agencies or programs. It’s an honor to represent you in Congress, and I wish you a healthy and prosperous year to come.

Respectfully.

fri
Jared F. Golden
Member of Congress

6 State Street. SuIt 10 7 1-hitch Drive, Suite 230 [79 lisbon Street
hlaiis,r, ML 01 (II ( :arlbnu, ML 04736 1_ewiston, ML 0421(1

[‘hone: (207) 249-740(1 phone: (207) 492-60(19 I’hc’ne: (207) 241-6767



Report of the Tax Collector
FY22

Tax Commitment ( Revenues by dept Trio Report)

Real Estate $ 4,223,810.50

Personall Property $ 1,586,648.71

Total $ 5,810,459.21

Collections

Ending Balance( General( Ledger Detail Report)

Real Estate $ 40,087.02

Real Estate Lien $ 183,573.38

Personal Property $ 6,745.62

Total $ 230,406.02

Supplemental ( Revenues by Trio Report)
Real Estate Supplemental $ -

Personal Property $ 1,267.50

Total $ 1,267.50

Abatements (Payments Activity Report)
Real Estate Tax Abatement $ 8,248.50

Persponal Property Tax Abatements $ 666.25

Total $ 8,914.75

Taxes Collected for Motor Vehicle and Boats Excise
Motor Vehicle $ 830,757.77

Boats $ 5,387.90

Total $ 636,145.67

Submitted by:

Tax Collector

dhmmud
Sharon Cyr



2022 UNPAID REAL ESTATE TAXES AS OF 6130122

AFRIDI, ASAD KHAN $822.83 HARTIN,STERLING $372.25 *

AINSWORTH, WALTER $296.33 HARLEY,JASON $517.33 *

ALDRIDGE, SHAUN &ALICIA TUTTLE $1,651.58 HARTLEY! LANCE $1,069.83 *

ALLEN, LYNN & MELVIN $756.96 HARVILLE,THOMAS $1,729.58 *

BAGLEY, RENA $423.08 * HASKELL, LAWRENCE $718.83
BAKER, DARIA HEIRS $1,580.08 * HERSEY, KRIS $501.08 *

BARNETT, LYNN $65383 * HEWES, MARY $1,258.33
BEACH, JEFFREY $754.58 * HITT, HAROLD $887.93 *

BELL, NICHOLAS $442.58 HUNTER, BILLIE JO $309.33 *

BERUBE, ISAAC $514.08 ISAAC, PAMELA $894.33 *

BLACK, NICHOLE& LOREN BROWN $900.83 JASPER, BARRY $88.33 *

BLANCHETTE, ERIC $546.58 JONES, THOMAS $1,307.08 *

BLUE BIRCH PROPERTIES LLC. $692.83 KIDNEY, ASHLEY $494.58
BLUE BIRCH PROPERTIES LLC. $1,365.58 KWW HOLDINGS GROUP, LLC $1,305.93
BOUCHARD, PEGGY $1,173.83 * LAPLANTE, BEVERLY $312.58 *

BOYINGTON, WILLIAM $665.92 * LEONARD, KENNETH $1,238.83 *

BOYNION, DAWN $2,527.07 * LOWRY, BRIAN $1,047.08 *

BOYNTON,MARK& DAWN $1,303.83 * MACQUARRIE,SHANNON $1,732.83
BOYNTON,WALDON $1,066.58 * MAGICCITYPROPERTIESLLC. $2,811.83 *

BRAGG, JOHN $2,051.44 * MAGIC CITY PROPERTIES LLC. $4,667.58 *

BRUNETTE, VINCENT $527.08 * MAGIC CITY PROPERTIES LLC. $62.33 *

BURKE, WILLIAM III $828.62 * MAGIC CITY PROPERTIES LLC. $1,791.33 *

BURKE, WILLIAM III $509.76 MAGIC CITY PROPERTIES LLC. $3,790.08 *

BURNETT, MICHAEL & JENNY $62.33 * MAGLIARDITI, JOSEPH $972.33
CARR, VALERIE HEIRS $1,144.58 MAINE WOODS RESORTS LLC $2,288.58 *

CHASSE MICHAEL $1,154.33 MAINE WOODS RESORTS LLC $3,286.92 *

CLEMENS, SEAN $1,788.08 * MANZO, EUGENE III & FRANCINE $1,612.58
COTE, RODERICK $494.48 MCEWEN, JOY $714.35
COX, JERRY $24.38 * MCINNIS, DONALD $141.96
CRAWFORD, JON $579.08 * MELLO, SUSAN $1,700.33
CRAWFORD, JON $286.58 * MICHAUD, TAMMY $400.33
CREEHAN, THOMAS & MELISSA $127.33 * MOORE, LETRICIA $2,308.08
CUMMINGS, JUSTIN $1,661.33 MOORE, VANESSA $875.48
CYR, HOLLIE $871.58 * MORRIS, DALE $777.33
DAY,KEVIN $1,017.54 * MORRISON, CATHY $546.33
DEROSA, DAVID $806.58 NELSON, DANIEL $3,855.08
DUMAS, LYNN $40849 * NICE. GARY $734.20 *

FERLAND, WAYNE $1,531.14 NICHOLSON, STEVEN $1,450.08 *

FERLAND, WAYNE $1,712.01 OAKES, WARNER JR HEIRS $1,780.57 *

FERLAND, WAYNE $142538 OLIVEIRA, GEORGE HEIRS $592.72
FOSTER, DANA $452.33 OLIVER, KAREN $543.33
FOURNIER, KEVIN $1,203.08 * PANAKIS, ATHANASIOS $661.95 *

FREEMAN, ELIZABETH $101.33 * PELKEY, KENDRA $998.33
GALLIONE, HILARY MORGAN $25.33 * PELLETIER, CHARLES $1,469.58
GCTRUST $1,638.58 PFORTE, KIMBERLY $1,345.81
GLIDDEN, JON $2594.08 PLOURDE, BRIAN $1570.33
GOODWIN, JACOB $2,090.33 PLOURDE, JOHN $574.25 *

GROELLY, LISA RITA $117.58 PREO,JONATHAN MICHAEL $587.00 *

GROELLY, LISA RITA $1,687.33 PRESTON, IAN & KAYLA $1,021.08 *

HARRIS, CONNIE $386.09 * ROSS, BRIAN $1,258.33



2022 UNPAID REAL ESTATE TAXES AS OF 6130122

ROY, JEFFREY $1895.33 *

RUSH,ANDREA HEIRS $1,557.33
RUSH,FRANK&SONSINC $2,051.33 *

RUSH, FRANK & SONS INC $289.83 *

SALIBA, KELLY $1,138.08 *

SIERRA, MELISSA $1,173.83 *

SIROIS, GAYLE HEIRS $1,986.33 *

SMITH, DENNIS WILLIAM & COURTNEY DAYRE $309.33 *

SNIDER,JOHN $889.28 *

STANLEY, DUSTIN & JENNIFER $1,238.83
STAPLES, COREY $673.33
STERRY, MICHAEL $1,089.33
THOMPSON,GENE 51,420.83 *

THOMPSON,GENE $1,391.58 *

TRACY, LOUIS $445.83
TRINITY REALTY PARTNERS LLC $1,843.33
VIGUE, GREGORY $923.58
VIGUE, STEPHEN $163.08 *

WACEKEN, STEPEN $1,505.33 *

WALLACE, ALAN $1,362.33
WEYMOUTH, ROSEANNE $689.58
WIDEN,ANDREW $4,188.56 *

WIDEN, ANDREW $1,524.06 *

WIDEN, ANDREW $2,034.96 *

YORK, JENNIFER $764.33
YORK, NIKKI- JO $392.20 *

* INDICATES PAID AFTER 06/30/22



2022 UNPAID PERSONAL PROPERTY AS OF 06130122

AIRPORT CABINS $19.50
AUTOMATIC VENDING & GAMES $113.75
CAMPBELL, EVAN $214.50
CONOPCD, INC $78.00
CYR, ED & SON INC $81.25
DUVEL, ROBERT $32.50
FERLAND, WAYNE $146.25
JANDREAU CLEANING $26.00
MAGIC CITY MED SHOP $217.75

S & S EXCAVATORS LLC $4,569.50
SMUCKER FOODSERVICE, INC $6.50 *

SURPRENANT, DAVID & LUISA $1007.50
SURPRENANT, DAVID & LUISA $162.50
TRACY, LOUIS $58.50

* INDICATES PAID AFTER 06/30/22



GENERAL ASSISTANCE

NOTE/STATEMENT * *

The General Assistance Program is an emergency service administered by the Town.
The program is to provide aid to eligible persons who are unable to provide the
necessities essential to maintaining themselves and their families. The requirements of
the program are eligibility standards and levels of assistance pursuant to applicable State
of Maine statutes, and the Town of Millinocket General Assistance Ordinance as ordered
by the Town Council. The General Assistance program is reimbursed by the State of
Maine at 70% for its expenditures. The program is confidential therefore aggregate
numbers are used.

In fiscal year 2021-2022, $22,650.00 was appropriated for General Assistance, $7,186.87
was expended and $5,030.81 was received in reimbursement from the State of Maine.

In fiscal year 2021- 2022, the General Assistance Program financially assisting 32
households. These households consisted of 42 individuals. The number of appointments
for 202 1-2022 was 35.

Aspire, a state-mn program, has assisted in helping individuals become employed and
more self-sufficient. The program requires TANF clients, to work as a volunteer in their
community a certain number of hours as an eligibility requirement for their TANF
checks. This has increased the amount of people going out and becoming employed,
which will help decreased their need for General Assistance. This office continues to
assist individuals in applying for Social Security, Temporary Aid to Needy Families,
Women Infants Children Program, Fuel Assistance Program, Food Stamps, and other
programs. The office has a Workfare program, which is an eligibility requirement for
applicants to receive General Assistance. Applicants arc assigned to work at one of the
Towns Department sites.

**The Millinocket Public Welfare Department’s goal is to help more clients to become
self-sufficient, therefore decreasing the need for public assistance.

Respectfully Submitted,

Sotl 0c. Cwntette

Lori A. Santerre
Welfare Director



PERSONNEL OFFICE

NOTE/STATEMENT* *

The Personnel Office oversees monitors and participates in the application and
employment process for all Town of Millinocket personnel. The Personnel officer also
implements and review’s the Affirmative Action Plan of the Town and other duties as
designated by the Town Manager.

The office is responsible for updating all job descriptions annually and preparation of all
advertisements for positions within the Town of Millinocket. Screening of applications,
scheduling and administration of all testing used in the selection process. Participation in
interviews with appropriate department heads assist in the determination of the best-
qualified applicant according to the criteria set forth.

Personnel is responsible for all personnel records and prepares monthly reports of
vacations, personal time off and sick leave taken. Participates in the Grievance Procedure
as outline in Personnel Policy. Responsible for preparation and presentation of annual
budget.

Daily written and oral communication with Maine State Retirement System, Maine
Municipal Employee Health Trust, Workers’ Compensation, Unum, Vendors,
Community Service Organization and Town employees to inquiry or to retrieve
information essential to the Town of Millinoeket or its employee’s.

**The Personnel Offices goal is to continue to service the employee’s and
correspondence in a courteous and efficient manner.

Respectfully, Submitted,

1jotl 0c. antette

Lori A. Santerre
Personnel Director



Assessor’s Annual Renort FY22

REAL ESTATE VALUATION

Land

Buildings/Improvements

Total Real Estate Valuation

PERSONAL PROPERTY VALUATION

Machinery and Equipment

Business Equipment

All Other

Total Personal Property

TOTAL TAXABLE VALUATION

Town Tax Rate: $32.50 per thousand

Total Tax for Commitment: $5,810,459

Total Number of Homestead Exemptions Granted: 1,271

$ 48,819,960

$178,783,360

Taxes assessed for Fiscal Year 2022 (July 1,2021 through June 30, 2022) were based on April 1,
2021. Total amount to be raised includes $275,516 for County Taxes.

Are you eligible for an Exemption?

Homestead Exemption: If you have owned your home for more than a year and it is your
primary residence, you may qualify.

Veteran’s Exemption: If you served during a federally recognized war period and have reached
the age of 62 or if you are receiving 100% service-connected disability, you may qualify.

Blind Exemption: If you have been deemed legally blind by your doctor, you may quali’.

Note: Taxpayers must complete an application for each exemption. All applications must be
received by April first to qualily for the tax bill that is mailed the following August. Veteran’s
applications must include a copy of your DD214 and blind applications must have a letter from a

$ 44,048,900

S 85.914.500

Si 29,963,400

S43.43 3,730

$ 1,216,530

S 4.169.700

licensed doctor certifying that you are legally blind.



Millinocket
Maines Biggest Small Town

TOWN OF MILLINOCKET
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT

20 Cedar Street
Millinocket, Maine

Tel. (207)723-7030 Fax (207)723-7029
E-Mail: publicworksiarnillinocket.org Web Site: www.millinockct.org

March 20, 2023

To the Citizens of Millinocket:

I would like to thank the citizens of rvlilLinocket for their cooperation while the departments worked to serve their
needs. F recognize the inconvenience we create in the roadway while doing line painting, sewer and storm drain
repair and of course snow removal. We try to minimize any confusion an inconvenience in those situations. Please
consider our safety when driving by our work zones and heavy equipment. Work zone safety involves all of us.

The Public Works Department was kept busy this year with mowing and trimming roadsides, parks, and many other
areas around town. We worked diligently to keep the streets clear of snow and standing water during the many
winter storms we had. The department also repaired many deteriorated drainage basins, flushed sewer lines,
replaced culverts, and kept up with equipment maintenance. We were able to repair several roads last year milling
and paving the worst areas that have high traffic. We received a grant in 2021 in the amount of$l25,000 dollars
from the Maine DSP to replace the steel culvert that spans Little Smith Brook near the Pines area of Town. This
project was slated for a 2023 completion but has been pushed back to 2024 due to material shortages.

The solid waste department has resumed some of the recycling that takes place in the Recycle Building. Recycling
efforts had been suspended due to Covid 19 a couple years ago. We are collecting and baling steel cans, natural and
colored plastic jugs, as well as cardboard items. The market pricing has fallen way below its ten year high.
However, with landfill costs at an all time high, recycling now makes as much sense as ever. Every ton removed
from the landfihi saves $82.69 in tipping fees. Continued cooperation in recycling benefits all of us.

The Town’s Cemetery was busy this past season with approximately 65 burials. Some stone cleaning and repair has
been done by a couple volunteers from the cemetery committee. Cemetery revenue has been strong and helps to
offset the operating costs. We were able to apply Weed Control and Fertilizer this past spring which has make a big
difference in the grass appearance. We stopped Grub Control Application and have not noticed any infestation last
summer.

1 want to thank the dedicated individuals that make up these departments. They all work to make each department
run like a well-oiled machine. The long nights of plowing and snow removal, the hot days of paving and trimming
and the moment’s notice citizen assists are all taken in stride by the members of these departments. Their hard work
and experience are part of what makes Millinocket safe and enjoyable for residents and visitors alike.

For further information please refer to the Town’s Web Site at www.millinocket.org
Respectfully,

Bryan J Duprey, Director of Public Works



Millinocket
Ma,nes biggest rtmaI!

4/7/2023

To the Citizens of Miliinocket:

Over this past year some exciting things have been

happening at our Airport. For example, the number of flights

are up, which translates to an increase in sales across the

board. As some may have noticed, there are quite a few larger

jets now using the Airport for a variety of reasons. This

translates to an increase in the sale of Jet Fuel. We are also in

the process of replacing some of our outdated facilities. A new

Terminal Building is now in the design and engineering phase

along with a reconstruction of the main runway. We have also

begun removing trees from along the side of the crosswind

runway, so that new lots can be offered and hangars can be

constructed.

Respectfully,

Jeff Campbell, Airport Manager

R4llhinocket.arg I (2Oi 12 31000 j 191 ‘eiohscot Avenim, MWinocket, MF (M$62



Millinocket
Maines Biggest Small Town

TOWN OF MILISINOCKET
FIREIEMS DEPARTMENT

222 Arooslook Avenue
Millinocket, Maine 04462

Tel. (207)723-7026 Fax (207)723-7022
E-Mail :chiefmalcolmmiIIinocket.org

Web Site:www.millinocket.org
Chief-Thomas Malcolm

Mission Statement

The Men and Women ofthe Millinocket Fire Department, a combination department, are committed to
providingfire prevention, community education, fire suppression, emergency medical care, natural & man-made
disasters response to our community and its visitors through quality improvement, state-of-the-art equipment,
proactive strategic planning, and sound resource management

During fiscal year 2021/2022, the Millinocket Fire arid Ambulance Service handled 1152 calls for service. The
Department responded to 1028 Ambulance calls and 124 Fire calls in 2021/2022. The following is the breakdown
of the calls for 202 1/2022:

FY 2021/2022

AMBULANCE
LOCAL CALLS: 663
TRANSFERS: 105
ASSIST OR NO TRANSPORT CALLS: 235
POLICE ASSISTS: 24
ACLS INTERCEPTSH

TOTAL CALLS: 1028

FIRE:
ALARM ACTIVATIONS: 27
AMB ASSIST: 19
ELECTRICAL: 10
UNPERMITTED BURNS: 10
STRUCTURES: 9
SMOKE CHECK: 7
PUBLIC ASSIST: 6
MUTUAL AID: S
HAZ-MAT: 5
CO ALARM: 4
FALSE ALARMS: 3
CHIMNEY: 3
GRASS/WOODS: 3
[0-55: 3
HEATING SOURCE: 2
SNOW SLED RESCUE: 2
FIREWORKS STBY: I
DUMPSTER: I





APPLIANCE: I
VEHICLE: I
GAS CONTAINER: I
SPRINKLER ALARM: 1

TOTAL: 124

The Millinocket Fire Department consists ofa Fire/EMS Chief, 1 2 Assistant Chief, and 4 FF/EMT’S
The Department is also supplemented with 15 dedicated call Firefighters/EMT/Spare Drivers. In
addition, the Department has 4 transfer nurses. Full time staff consists of Fire Chief/EMA Director/A
EMT Thomas Malcolm, 2’ Asst. Chief/A EMT Matthew Farrington, FE/Paramedic Addison Matthews.
EF/Paramedic Katie Cullen, FF/Paramedic Jennifer Bernier, FE/A EMT Celina Charette.

Training is ongoing for all Firefighters and Emergency Medical Technicians.

We hold fire extinguisher and safety inspections for various businesses as well as for the citizens of our
community. We also do alternative heating sources inspections and chinmey inspections for the citizens
and businesses within our community and provide LSC inspections upon request and with the Town of
Millinocket Assistance Program.

Our current equipment consists of a 2012 Metalfab 1500-gallon pumper, a 2021 Chevrolet 4500 4X4

Type 1 ambulance, a 2020 Ski Doo 900 Expedition Snow Sled, a 2019 Ford 350 Type III ambulance, a
2015 Chevrolet 3500 Type III ambulance, a 2002 KME 750-gallon pumper, a Rescue Boogan to go with
the Rescue Sled, 2 Rescue Boogan, a 16 Ft Rescue Boat equipped with a 3OFIP motor, a 2018 Chevrolet
4X4 extra cab equipped with a fiberglass cap. This equipment is maintained and tested annually and is in
excellent condition.

The Millinocket Fire Department was awarded a Gloria MacKenzie Foundation Grant and were able to
replace 5 of our outdated Scott 2.2 air packs with 5 new Scott 4.5 air packs and 10 new bottles, also
included in this grant was monies to replace our 1980’s era Compressed Air system which is used to fill
SCBA air pack bottles with a new state of the art unit that included a new fill station.

We would like to thank the other Town Departments for their assistance during these past two years and
look forward to collaborating with them in the future. Finally, I would like to thank the citizens, Town
Manager, and Town Council for their continued support of the department. And a Thank You to the full
time and part time members of this department for their continued support and dedication to the Town of
Millinocket.

Respectfully Submitted.
Chief Thomas Malcolm





Millinocket
Manes Biggest Smail Town

Dear Residents,

The 2021-2022 season was very successful. Our summer was very busy with arts and

crafts, summer lunches and the pool. The pooi was very busy this past summer, we averaged

around 75 swimmers per day.

Along with our regular programs, we with work with other agencies to provide more

opportunities for the communities. Little Pro Basketball, Field hockey, Flag Football, Little Giant

Football, Youth Soccer, Softball and Little League, Father! Daughter Dance and Mother /Son

Dances are always well attended by all three communities. We want to thank all the individuals

who have volunteered for us; they donate countless hours and without these wonderful people

we would not be able to accomplish what we do. The Recreation Commission has contributed

many hours of their time and has been a considerable help. It is our goal to keep the Recreation

Department as a vital part of the Katahdin Region. We are looking forward to a strong 2022

season and as always appreciate your support.

Sincerely Yours,

Jody Nelson

Director of Recreation

(207) 723-7000
iIIinocket.Or 197 Penobscot Ave. Millinocket, ME.



Millinocket
Maine’s Biggest Small Town
Wastewater Treatment Facility

Annual report

2021-2022

To The Rate Payers of Millinocket:

In the past year, the Wastewater treatment Facility collected and treated

252,178,000 million gallons of wastewater. Removal rates of 95 percent for BOD

(Biochemical Oxygen Demand) and 95 percent for TSS (Total Suspended Solids)

were achieved this year.

During the summer months, Sewer Upgrades were done on Elm/Bates streets and

on some streets up in the new development area. Design work continued for the

Main Pump Station upgrade which could begin as early as the summer of 2024.

The Wastewater Treatment continues to provide adequate treatment for our

community’s sewerage. The percentage of removal at the treatment facility

continues to show the dedication of the three person staff along with their

commitment to excellence in the preservation of our waterways.

Respectfully Submitted,

Jason Ingalls/Superintendent of Wastewater Treatment
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
Town Council
Town of Millinocket
Millinocket, Maine

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town
of Millinocket, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s basic
financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present
fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental
activities, business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the Town of Millinocket, Maine as of June 30, 2022 and the respective
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the
United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are required to be independent of the Town of Millinocket, Maine and to meet our other
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our
audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and for the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control
relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
‘Id: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 920-4609
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In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether
there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt
about the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve
months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that
may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a
high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the override of
internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood
that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government AuditIng
Standards, we:

• exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit.

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatements of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining,
on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements.

• obtain an understanding of internal controls relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of
Millinocket, Maine’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

• conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events,
considered in the aggregate, that raise doubt about the Town of Millinocket,
Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of
time.
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We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit
findings and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary In formation

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require
that the management’s discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information,
pension and OPEB information on pages 5 through 12 and 77 through 87 be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of
the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We
have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements and other knowledge we
obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial
statements that collectively comprise the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s basic financial
statements. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and
Actual - General Fund Revenues, Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund
and combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of
Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost
Principles and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards and is also not a required part of
the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary
Basis - Budget and Actual - General Fund Revenues, Schedule of Departmental
Operations - General Fund, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
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statements and the schedule of expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our
report dated March 28, 2023, on our consideration of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s
internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing and not to
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an
audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the
Town of Millinocket, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

fb4? S> I Ca,aaj

Buxton, Maine
March 28, 2023
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

JUNE 30, 2022

(UNAUDITED)

The following management’s discussion and analysis of Town of Millinocket,
Maine’s financial performance provides an overview of the Town’s financial activities for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. Please read it in conjunction with the Towns
financial statements.

Financial Statement Overview

The Town of MiHinocket’s basic financial statements include the following
components: 1) government-wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements and
3) notes to the financial statements. This report also includes required supplementary
information which consists of the general fund and education fund budgetary
comparison schedules, pension and OPEB schedules and other supplementary
information which includes combining and other schedules.

Basic Financial Statements

The basic financial statements include financial information in two differing views:
the government-wide financial statements and the fund financial statements. These
basic financial statements also include the notes to financial statements that explain in
more detail certain information in the financial statements and also provide the user with
the accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements provide a broad view of the Town’s
operations in a manner that is similar to private businesses. These statements provide
both short-term as well as long-term information in regard to the Town’s financial
position. These financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. This measurement focus takes into account all revenues and expenses
associated with the fiscal year regardless of when cash is received or paid. The
government-wide financial statements include the following two statements:

The Statement of Net Position - this statement presents all of the government’s
assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources with the difference being reported as net position.

The Statement of Activities - this statement presents information that shows how
the government’s net position changed during the period. All changes in net
position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change
occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.
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Both of the above-mentioned financial statements have separate columns for the
two different types of Town activities. The types of activities presented for the Town of
Millinocket are:

• Governmental activities - The activities in this section are mostly
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (federal and state
grants). Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental
activities, which include general government, public safety, public works,
fringe benefits, community services, education and grant funds/misc
accounts.

• Business-type activities - These activities are normally intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and/or charges
to external users for goods and/or services. These activities for the Town
of Millinocket include the wastewater treatment.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over
resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of
Millinocket, like other local governments uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with financial related legal requirements. All of the funds of the
Town of Millinocket can be divided into two categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental funds: Most of the basic services provided by the Town are
financed through governmental funds. Governmental funds are used to account for
essentially the same functions reported in governmental activities in the government-
wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
the governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of
spendable resources. They also focus on the balance of spendable resources available
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information will be useful in evaluating the
government’s near-term financing requirements. This approach is known as the current
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.
Under this approach revenues, are recorded when cash is received or when susceptible
to accrual. Expenditures are recorded when liabilities are incurred and due. These
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town’s finances to assist in
determining whether there will be adequate financial resources available to meet the
current needs of the Town.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of government
wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for
governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the
government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the
long-term impact of the government’s near-term financing decisions. Both the
governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues,
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expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. These
reconciliations are presented on the page immediately following each governmental
funds financial statement.

The Town of Millinocket presents four columns in the governmental funds
balance sheet and the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and
changes in fund balances. The Town’s major governmental funds are the general fund,
the education fund and the capital reserve fund. All other funds are shown as nonmajor
and are combined in the Other Governmental Funds” column on these statements.

The general fund and education fund are the only funds for which the Town
legally adopted a budget. The Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis -

Budget and Actual - General Fund and the Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Education Fund provide comparisons of the
original and final budget and the actual expenditures for the current year.

Proprietary Funds: The Town of Millinocket maintains one proprietary fund, the
Wastewater Treatment Fund. This fund is used to show activities that operate more like
those of commercial enterprises. Proprietary funds provide the same type of
information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. Like the
government-wide financial statements, proprietary fund financial statements use the
accrual basis of accounting. No reconciliation is needed between the government-wide
financial statements for business-type activities and the proprietary fund financial
statements.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding
of the data provided in the Government-Wide and the Fund Financial Statements. The
Notes to Financial Statements can be found following the Statement of Cash Flows -

Proprietary Funds.

Required Supplementary Information

The basic financial statements are followed by a section of required
supplementary information, which includes a Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - General Fund, Budgetary Comparison Schedule
- Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual - Education Fund, Schedule of Proportionate
Share of the Net Pension Liability, a Schedule of Contributions - Pensions, Schedule of
Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability - Set Plan, Schedule of Contributions -

OPEB, a Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB Liability - MMEHT Plan, Schedule of
Changes in Net OPEB Liability and Related Ratios - MMEHT Plan, Schedule of
Changes in Net OPEB Liability - MEABT Plan, Schedule of Changes in Net OPEB
Liability and Related Ratios - MEABT Plan and Notes to Required Supplementary
Information.
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information follows the required supplementary information.
These combining and other schedules provide information in regard to nonmajor funds
and other detailed budgetary information for the general fund.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Our analysis below focuses on the net position and changes in net
Town’s governmental activities. The Town’s total net position for
activities increased by $4,611,486 from $5,024,337 to $9,635,823. Fo
type activities, total net position increased by $1,051,498 from
$7,907,110.

position of the
governmental

r the business-
$6,855,612 to

Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance
day-to-day operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling
legislation or other legal requirements - is a deficit balance of $1,727,662 at the end of
this year for governmental activities and a balance of $3,566,183 for the business-type
activities.

Table I
Town of Millinocket, Maine

Net Position
June 30,

Assets:
Current Assets
Noncurrent Assets - Capital Assets
Total Assets

Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred Outflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Outflows Related to OPEB
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources

Liabilities:
Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Deterred Inflows of Resources:
Deferred Revenue
Prepaid Taxes
Deferred Inflows Related to Pensions
Deferred Inflows Related to OPEB
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Position:
Net Investment in Capital Assets
Restricted
Unrestricted (Deficit)
Total Net Position

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
2022 2021 2022 2021

$ 10,676,623 $ 8,925,218 $ 3,888,117 $ 4,771,756
1 0,329,800 1 0,334,959 7,696,109 5,919,090
21,006,423 19,260,177 11,584,226 1 0,690,846

823,873 517,906 - -

103,106 122,836 - -

926,979 640,742 - -

1,741,034 1,751,191 424,451 418.803
8,397,451 1 2,365,449 3,252,665 3,416,431

10,1 38,485 14,116,640 3,677,116 3,835,234

511,697 - - -

28,858 33,531 - -

1,549,498 200,167 - -

69.041 76.244 - -

2,159,094 309,942 - -

9,279,415 9,151,697 4,340,927 2,508,320
2,084,070 1,594,743 - -

(1,127,662) (5,722,1 03) 3,566,183 4,347,292

$ 9,635,823 $ 5,024,337 $ 7,907,110 $ 6,855,612
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Revenues and Expenses

Revenues for the Town’s governmental activities increased by 4.17%, while total
expenses decreased by 9.85%. The increase in revenues was primarily due to grants
and contributions not restricted to specific programs. The decrease in expenses was
primarily due to education and fringe benefits.

Revenues increased by 81.53% in the Town’s business
total expenses increased by 26.15%.

Table 2

type activities, while the

Town of Millinocket, Maine
Change in Net Position

For the Years Ended June 30,

Revenues
Program Revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

General Revenues:
Taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs
Investment income
Miscellaneous
Total Revenues

Expenses
General government
Public safety
Public works
Fringe benefits
Community services
Education
County tax
Grant funds/misc accounts
State of Maine on-behalf payments
Interest on long-term debt
Wastewater treatment

Total Expenses

Change in Net Position

Net Position - July 1

Net Position - June 30

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
2022 2021 2022 2021

$ 787,697 $ 870,229 $ 1,060,626 $ 1066,609
4,358.755 4.428.412 - -

217,749 761.447 - -

6,285:738 6,304,750 - -

4.907,600 2,950,685 900,000 -

33,571 66,635 13,763 20,005
696.406 1.213,455 2,843 2,576

17.287,516 16,595,613 1,977,232 1,089,190

1.018,140 860.796 - -

2,120,888 1,673.132 - -

1,028,626 970,727 - -

10,361 1,062,553 - -

901,396 697.684 - -

6,135,495 7,576.525 - -

275,516 246.428 - -

638,934 119,515 - -

477,532 817,468 - -

69,142 36,371 - -

- - 925,734 733,829
12,676.030 14,061,199 925,734 733,829

4,611,486 2,534,414 1,051,498 355,361

5,024,337 2,489,923 6,855,612 6,500,251

$ 9,635,823 $ 5,024,337 $ 7,907,110 $ 6,855,612
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Financial Analysis of the Town’s Fund Statements

Governmental funds: The financial reporting focus of the Town’s governmental
funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows and balances of
spendable resources. Such information may be useful in assessing the Town’s financial
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measure of
a governments financial position at the end of the year and the net resources available
for spending.

Table 3
Town of Millinocket, Maine

Fund Balances - Governmental Funds
June 30,

In c rease!

________________________ ________________________

(D e C rea s e)
Major Funds:

General Fund:
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Education Fund:
Restricted
Comm i He d

Capital Reserve Fund:
Corn milled

______________ ______________ ______________

Total Major Funds

Nonmajor Funds:
Special Revenue Funds:

Nonspendable
Restricted
Corn miffed
Assigned
Unassigned

Permanent Funds:
Nonspendable
Restricted

_______________ _______________ _______________

Total Nonrnajor Funds

The changes to total fund balances for the general fund, the education fund, the
capital reserve fund and aggregate nonmajor funds occurred due to the regular activity
of operations.

Proprietary funds: The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

The wastewater treatment fund had an increase in net position of $1,051,498,
which is an increase from the prior year change in net position of $355,361. This is due
primarily to grant revenue.

2022 2021

$ 114,011 $ 29.709 $ 84,302
470,938 134,016 336,922

1,018,112 111,061 907,051
4,366,236 4,445,616 (79,380)

611,151 595,116 16,035
392,360 - 392,360

308,983 308,649 334

S 7,281,791 $ 5.624.167 $ 1,657,624

S 25,509 $ - $ 25,509
823,277 826,504 (3,227)

74,025 79,526 (5,501)
105.859 120,876 (15,017)

- (4,157) 4,157

16,401 16A01 -

22,783 22,706 77

S 1,067,854 $ 1,061,856 $ 5,998
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Budgetary Highlights

The differences between the original and final budget for the general fund was
the use of assigned fund balance and applied receipts.

The general fund actual revenues exceeded budgeted amounts by $447,599.
This was due to all revenue categories being receipted in excess of budgeted amounts
with the exception of general tax revenue and transfers from other funds.

The general fund actual expenditures were expended under budgeted amounts
by $1448374. All expenditure categories were expended within or under budgeted
amounts

fund
There was no difference between the original and final budget for the education

The education fund actual revenues were below budgeted amounts by $207368.
This was due to all revenue categories being receipted below budgeted amounts with
the exception of intergovernmental revenues and other revenue.

The education fund
amounts by $615763. All
budgeted amounts.

actual expenditures were expended under budgeted
expenditure categories were expended within or under

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

As of June 30, 2022, the net book
increased by $1,771,860. This increase
less current year depreciation expense
Financial Statements for additional information

value of capital assets recorded by the Town
is a result of capital additions of $2,664,998
of $893,138. Refer to Note 5 of Notes to

Town of Millinocket, Maine

Capital Assets (Net of Depreciation)
June 30,

Land
Construction in progress
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and

vehicles
Infrastructure
Total

2022 2021

$ 205,841 $ 205,841
385,416 571,087

3,795,330 3,853,566
3,371,207 3,665,832

2,957,022 2,724,427
7,311,093 5,233,296

$ 18,025,909 $ 16,254,049

Table 4
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Debt

At June 30, 2022, the Town had $4,405,567 in bonds and a note from direct
borrowings payable versus $4,594,032 last year. Refer to Note 6 of Notes to Financial
Statements for more detailed information.

Currently Known Facts, Decisions or Conditions

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The Town has steadily maintained a sufficient unassigned fund balance to
sustain government operations for a period of approximately eight months, while also
maintaining significant reserve accounts for future capital and program needs. The FY
22 School Department budget could be severely impacted by the reduction of funding
from the State.

Contacting the Town’s Financial Management

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers
and investors and creditors with a general overview of the Town’s finances and to show
the Town’s accountability for the money it receives. If you have questions about this
report or need additional financial information, contact the Town Finance Department at
197 Penobscot Avenue, Millinocket, Maine 04462.
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STATEMENT A
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equiIents

Investments

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles):
Taxes

Other

Due from other governments

Inventory

Tax acquired property
Internal balances

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land and other assets not being depreciated

Buildings and vehicles net of accumulated depreciation

_______________________________________________

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred outflows related to pensions
Deferred outflows related to OPEB

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES $ 21,933402 $ 11,584,226 $ 33,517,628

Governmental

ActMties

Business-type

Activities Total

S 7,988,532 $ 2,613,039 $ 10,601,571

425,006 - 425,006

274,328 - 274,328

1,364,351 1,224,018 2,588,369
535,946 - 535,946

71,782 - 71,782
67,738 - 67,738

(51,060) 51,060 -

10,676,623 3,888,117 14,564,740

564,676 26,581 591,257
9,765,124 7,669,528 17,434,652

10,329,800 7,696,109 18,025,909

21,006,423 11,584,226 32,590,649

823,873 - 823,873

103,106 - 103,106

926,979 - 926,979
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STATEMENT A (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2022

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued payroll

Accrued expenses

Current portion of long-term obligations
Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations:

Bonds payable

Note from direct borrowings payable
Accrued compensated absences
Net pension liability

Net OPEB liability
Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Deferred renue
Prepaid taxes

Deferred inflows related to pensions

Deferred inflows related to OPEB
TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION
Net in’estment in capital assets
Restricted

Unrestricted (deficit)
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND NET POSITION

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
14

Governmental
ActMties

Business-type
ActhAties Total

S 839,650 $ 240,630 $ 1,080,280
573,655 - 573,655

106,018 4,131 110,149

221,711 179,690 401,401
1,741,034 424,451 2,165,485

797,524 3,183,209 3,980,733

53,909 - 53,909
204,831 69,456 274,287

38,410 - 38,410

7,302,777 - 7,302,777

8,397,451 3,252,665 11,650,116

10,138,485 3,677,116 13,815,601

511,697 - 511,697
28,858 - 28,858

1,549,498 - 1,549,498

69,041 - 69,041
2,159,094 - 2,159,094

9,279,415 4,340,927 13,620,342

2,084,070 - 2,084,070

(1,727,662) 3,566,183 1,838,521
9,635,823 7,907,110 17,542,933

$ 21,933,402 $ 11,584,226 $ 33,517,628
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STATEMENT B (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Changes in net position:
Net (expense) revenue

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes, levied for general purposes
Excise taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to
specific programs

Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses)
Miscellaneous

Total general revenues

Change in net position

NET POSITION - JULY 1

NET POSITION - JUNE 30 $

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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Governmental
Activities

Business-
type

Activities Total

(7,311,829) 134,892 (7,176,937)

1

5,449,592
836,146

4,907,600
33,571

696,406
1,923,315

4,611,486

5,024,337

9,635,823

900,000
13,763
2,843

916,606

1,051,498

6,855,612

$ 7,907,110 $1

5,449,592
836,146

5,807,600
47,334

699,249
2,839,921

5,662,984

1,879,949

7,542,933



STATEMENT C
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Other Total
General Education Reserve Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents $ 7,594,375 $ - $ 182,263 $ 211,894 $ 7,988,532
Investments - - - 425,006 425,006
Accounts receivables (net of allowance for

uncollecti bles)
Taxes/liens 274,328 - - - 274,328
Other 972,308 70,054 - 321,989 1,364,351

Duefromothergovernments - - - 535,946 535,946
Inventory 46,273 - - 25,509 71,782
Tax acquired property 67,738 - - - 67,738
Due from other funds 534,105 1,577,031 285,301 69,891 2,466,328

TOTALASSETS $ 9,489,127 $ 1,647,085 $ 467,564 $ 1,590,235 $13,194,011

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 731,552 $ 96,154 $ - $ 11,944 $ 839,650
Accrued payroll 29,978 543,677 - - 573,655
Accrued expenses 29,059 - - 76959 106,018
Due to other funds 1,983,283 - 158,581 375524 2,51 7,388

TOTALIJABILITIES 2,773,872 639,831 158,581 464,427 4,036,711

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred debt service revenue 450,000 - - - 450,000
Deferred revenues - 3,743 - 57,954 61,697
Prepaid taxes 28,858 - - - 28,858
Deferredtaxrevenues 267,100 - - - 267,100

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 745,958 3,743 - 57,954 807,655

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 114,011 - - 41,910 155,921
Restricted 470,938 611,151 - 846,060 1,928,149
Committed - 392,360 308,983 74,025 775,368
Assigned 1,018,112 - - 105,859 1,123,971
Unassigned 4,366,236 - - - 4,366,236

TOTAL FUND BALANCES 5,969,297 1,003,511 308,983 1,067,854 8,349,645

TOTAL IJABILFTIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES $ 9,489,127 $ 1,647,085 $ 467,564 $ 1,590,235 $13,194,011

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT D
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30, 2022

Total
Governmental

Funds

Total Fund Balances $ 8349645
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are

different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and

therefore are not reported in the funds, net of accumulated depreciation 10,329,800
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures

and therefore are deferred in the funds shown above:
Taxes and liens receivable 267,100

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds 823,873

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds 103,106

Long-term obligations are not due and payable in the current period and
therefore are not reported in the funds:
Bonds payable (937,352)
Note from direct borrowings payable (113,033)
Accrued compensated absences (227,590)
Net pension liability (38,410)
Net OPEB liability (7,302,777)

Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds (1,549,498)

Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB are not financial resources
and therefore are not reported in the funds (69,041)

Net position of governmental activities $ 9,635,823

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT E
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Capital Other Total

General Education Reserve Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Fund Funds Funds

REVENUES
General tax revenue $ 6,323,238 $ - $ - $ - $ 6,323,238
Intergovernmental revenue 3,1 53,430 3,831,157 - 2,021985 9,006,572
Charges for seMces 687,190 71,879 - 28,628 787,697
Investment income, net of unrealized gains/Oosses) 10,817 - 334 22,420 33,571
State of Maine on-behalf payments - 349,324 - - 349,324

Otherrevenue 415,471 112,957 - 167,978 696406
TOTAL REVENUES 10,590,146 4365,317 334 2,241,011 17196.808

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Generalgovernment 1.009.021 - - - 1.009.021
Public safety 2.086,071 - - - 2.086,071
Publicworks 1.534.781 - - - 1.534,781
Frirge benefits 10.361 - - - 10,361
Community serAces 701.749 - - 701,749
Education - 6,448.553 - 2,205.210 8.653,763
Countytax 275,516 - - - 275,516
State of Maine on-behalf payments - 349,324 - - 349,324
Grant funds/misc accounts 638.934 - - - 638.934

Debt seryce:
Principal 111.316 93:208 - - 204.524
Interest 65.426 3,716 - - 69,142

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6.433.175 6.894,801 - 2,205,210 15,533,186

EXCESS REVENUES OVER (UNDER)
EXPENDITURES 4.1 56,971 (2,529,484) 334 35,801 1,663,622

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES
Transfers in - 2:952,036 - 14:157 2,966,193
Transfers (out) (2,908,076) (14,157) - (43,960) (2966,193)

TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) (2,908,076) 2,937,879 - (29,803) -

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 1,248,895 408,395 334 5,998 1,663,622

FUND BALANCES - JULY I 4,720,402 595,116 308,649 1,061,856 6,686,023

FUND BALANCES - JUNE 30 $ 5,969,297 $ 1,003,511 $ 308,983 $ 1,067,854 $ 8,349,645

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT F
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Statement E) $ 1,663.622

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities
(Statement B) are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense allocated to those expenditures over the life
of the assets:
Capital asset acquisitions 701.722
Depreciation expense (706.881)

(5,1 59)

Deferred outflows of resources are a consumption of net position by the government
that are applicable to a future reporting period and therefore are not reported in the
funds:
Pensions 305,967
OPEB (19,730)

286,237

Revenues in the Statement of Activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported:
Taxes and liens receivable (37,500)

Debt proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Position (99,212)

Repayment of long-term debt principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds,
but the repayment reduces lang-term obligations in the Statement of Net Position 232,089

Deferred inflows of resources are an acquisition of net position by the government
that are applicable to a future reporting period and therefore are not reported in the
funds:
Pensions (1,349,331)
OPEB 7,203

(1,342,128)

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the use of
current financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in
governmental funds:
Accrued compensated absences 2790
Litigation liability 45,000
Net pension liability 1,449,439
Net OPEB liability 2,416,308

3,913,537

Change in net position of governmental activities (Statement B) $ 4,611,486

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE
STATEMENT 0

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

Enterprise Fund

ASSETS

Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts receivable (net of allowance for uncollectibles)

Due from other funds

Total current assets

Wastewater
Treatment

S 2,613,039
1224,018

51,060

3,888.117

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets:

Construction in progress

Buildings and improvements

Machinery, equipment and vehicles

Infrastructure

Total capital assets
Less: accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Current portion of long-term obligations

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:

Noncurrent portion of long-term obligations:

Bonds payable
Accrued compensated absences

Total noncurrent liabilities

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
TOTAL NET POSITION

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

26,581

4,824,153
1,967,965

10,641,804
17,460,503

(9,764,394)

7,696,109

$ 11,584,226

$ 240,630

4,131

179,690

424,451

3,183,209
69,456

3,252,665

3.677,116

4,340,927
3,566,183

7,907.110

$ 11.584.226

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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STATEMENT H
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Enterprise Fund
Wastewater
Treatment

OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services
Other

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUES

OPERATING EXPENSES
Salaries and wages
Fringe benefits
Contracted services
Insurance
Utilities
Fuel / motor
Repairs, maintenance and equipment
Supplies and office
Chemicals
Depreciation
Other

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Grant proceeds
Interest income
Interest expense

TOTAL NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

NET POSITION - JULY 1

NET POSITION - JUNE 30

$ 1,060,626
2,843

1,063469

1,051,498

6,855,612

$ 7,907,110

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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212,146
158,282

36,981
25,817
73,089
11,619
42,237

3,946
3,290

186,257
137,113
890,777

172,692

900,000
13,763

(34,957)
878,806



STATEMENT I
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from customers

Other receipts
Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

_________________

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY INVESTING ACTIVI11ES

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital grant

_________________

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Capital assets purchased

Interest payments on bond payable
Principal payments on bond payable

_________________

NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JULY 1

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS - JUNE 30

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash pro’Aded (used)

by operating actMties:
Depreciation and amortization expense

Changes in operating assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities

and deferred inflows of resources:
(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable

(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Decrease) increase in accounts payable
(Decrease) increase in accrued expenses

(Decrease) increase in accrued compensated absences
NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

Enterprise Fund

Was t ewa te r
Treatment

$ 2503,692

2,843

(361,309)
(445,741)

1,699,488

13,763

13,763

900, 000
900,000

(1,963,276)
(34,957)

(55,588)

(2.053,821)

559,430

2,053,609

S 2,613,039

$ 172,692

186,257

1,443,066
3

(112,800)

1,151

9, 1 19

$ 1,699,488
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Reporting Entity

The Town of Millinocket was incorporated under the laws of the State of Maine.
The Town operates under Town Council-manager form of government and provides the
following services: general government, public safety, public works, fringe benefits,
community services, education and program expenses.

The Town’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) is responsible for establishing GAAP for state and local governments
through its pronouncements (Statements and Interpretations). Governments are also
required to follow the pronouncements of the Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) issued through November 30, 1989 (when applicable) that do not conflict with or
contradict GASB pronouncements. Although the Town has the option to apply FASB
pronouncements issued after that date to its business-type activities and enterprise
funds, the Town has chosen not to do so.

The Town’s combined financial statements include all accounts and all
operations of the Town. We have determined that the Town has no component units as
described in GASB Statement No. 14 and amended by GASB Statements No. 39 and
No. 61.

Implementation of New Accounting Standards

During the year ended June 30, 2022, the following statements of financial
accounting standards issued by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board
became effective:

Statement No. 87 “Leases”. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the
information needs of financial statement users by improving accounting and financial
reporting for leases by governments. This Statement increases the usefulness of
governments’ financial statements by requiring recognition of certain lease assets and
liabilities for leases that previously were classified as operating leases and recognized
as inflows of resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract. It establishes a single model for lease accounting based on the foundational
principle that leases are financings of the right to use an underlying asset. Under this
Statement, a lessee is required to recognize a lease liability and an intangible right-to
use lease asset and a lessor is required to recognize a lease receivable and a deferred
inflow of resources, thereby enhancing the relevance and consistency of information
about governments’ leasing activities. Management has determined the impact of this
Statement is not material to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Statement No 89 ‘Accounting for Interest Cost Incurred before the End of a
Construction Period”, This Statement establishes accounting requirements for interest
cost incurred before the end of a construction period. Such interest cost includes all
interest that previously was accounted for in accordance with the requirements of
paragraphs 5—22 of Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial
Reporting Guidance Contained in Pro-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA
Pronouncements, which are superseded by this Statement. This Statement requires
that interest cost incurred before the end of a construction period be recognized as an
expense in the period in which the cost is incurred for financial statements prepared
using the economic resources measurement focus. As a result, interest cost incurred
before the end of a construction period will not be included in the historical cost of a
capital asset reported in a business-type activity or enterprise fund. Management has
determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial statements.

Statement No. 91 “Conduit Debt Obligations”. The primary objectives of this
Statement are to provide a single method of reporting conduit debt obligations by
issuers and eliminate diversity in practice associated with (1) commitments extended by
issuers, (2) arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations and (3) related note
disclosures. This Statement achieves those objectives by clarifying the existing
definition of a conduit debt obligation; establishing that a conduit debt obligation is not a
liability of the issuer; establishing standards for accounting and financial reporting of
additional commitments and voluntary commitments extended by issuers and
arrangements associated with conduit debt obligations and improving required note
disclosures. Management has determined the impact of this Statement is not material
to the financial statements.

Statement No. 92 ‘Omnibus 2020”. The objectives of this Statement are to
enhance comparability in accounting and financial reporting and to improve the
consistency of authoritative literature by addressing practice issues that have been
identified during implementation and application of certain GASB Statements.
Management has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the financial
statements.

Statement No. 93 “Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates (paragraphs 13-14)”.
The primary objectives of paragraphs 13-14 concern provisions of lease contracts that
are amended while the contract is in effect. Management has determined the impact of
this Statement is not material to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Statement No. 97 ‘Certain Component Unit Criteria and Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Sect/on 457 Deferred Compensation
Plans”. The primary objectives of this Statement are to (1) increase consistency and
comparability related to the reporting of fiduciary component units in circumstances in
which a potential component unit does not have a governing board and the primary
government performs the duties that a governing board typically would perform; (2)
mitigate costs associated with the reporting of certain defined contribution pension
plans, defined contribution other postemployment benefit (OPEB) plans and employee
benefit plans other than pension plans or OPEB plans (other employee benefit plans) as
fiduciary component units in fiduciary fund financial statements and (3) enhance the
relevance, consistency and comparability of the accounting and financial reporting for
Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 deferred compensation plans (Section 457
plans) that meet the definition of a pension plan and for benefits provided through those
plans. Management has determined the impact of this Statement is not material to the
financial statements.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The Town’s basic financial statements include both government-wide (reporting
the Town as a whole) and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds).

Both the government-wide and fund financial statements categorize primary
activities as either governmental or business-type. The Town’s wastewater treatment
fund is categorized as a business-type activity. All other activities of the Town are
categorized as governmental.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and
business-type activities columns are (a) presented on a consolidated basis by column
and (b) are reported on a full accrual, economic resources basis, which recognizes all
long-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt and obligations. The
Town’s net position is reported in three parts - net investment in capital assets,
restricted net position and unrestricted net position. The Town first utilizes restricted
resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost
of each of the Town’s functions and business-type activities (general government, public
safety, etc.) excluding fiduciary activities. The functions are also supported by general
government revenues (property taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues,
miscellaneous revenues, etc.). The Statement of Activities reduces gross expenses
(including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital grants.
Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type
activity. Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (either operating
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

or capital) grants while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants. For the
most part, the interfund activity has been eliminated from these government-wide
financial statements.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (taxes,
certain intergovernmental revenues and charges for services, etc.).

The Town does not allocate indirect costs. All costs are charged directly to the
corresponding department.

The government-wide focus is more on the sustainability of the Town as an entity
and the change in the Town’s net position resulting from the current year’s activities.

Measurement Focus - Basic Financial Statements and Fund Financial Statements

The financial transactions of the Town are reported in the individual funds in the
fund financial statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of
self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, deferred outflows of resources,
liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund balances, revenues and
expenditures/expenses. The various funds are reported by generic classification within
the financial statements. The following fund types are used by the Town:

1. Governmental Funds:

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is
upon determination of financial position (sources, uses and balances of financial
resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of the
governmental funds of the Town:

Major Funds

a. The General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to
account for all financial resources except those required to be accounted
for in another fund.

b. The Education Fund is used to account for all financial resources of the
Millinocket School Department. Revenue sources are from
intergovernmental revenues, charges for services and other revenues.

c. Capital Reserve Funds are used to account for transactions related to
capital reserves held by the Town. Revenue sources are transfers from
other funds.
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Nonmajor Funds

d. Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources that are legally restricted to expenditures for specified
purposes.

e. Permanent Funds are used to account for assets held by the Town that
are legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State
Statutes, as amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and
not principal, may be used for purposes that benefit the Town or its
citizenry. The Town’s policy for authorizing and spending investment
income follows State statutes.

2. Proprietary Funds:

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating
income, changes in net position, financial position and cash flows. The generally
accepted accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private
sector, Operating revenues include charges for services, intergovernmental
reimbursements and other miscellaneous fees which are a direct result of the
proprietary activity. Nonoperating revenues are any revenues which are generated
outside of the general proprietary activity, i.e. interest income. The following is a
description of the proprietary funds of the Town:

a. Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for
which a fee is charged to external users for goods or services and the
activity (a) is financed with debt that is solely secured by a pledge of net
revenues, (b) has third party requirements that the cost of providing
services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (c)
established fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to
recover similar costs.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the
governmental or business-type activities categories. Nonmajor funds by category are
summarized into a single column, GASB Statement No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria
(percentage of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, revenues or expenses of either the fund category or the governmental and
enterprise combined) for the determination of major funds. The nonmajor funds are
combined in a column in the fund financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Basis of Accounting

Basis of accounting refers to when revenues and expenditures or expenses are
recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurements made, regardless of the
measurement focus applied.

1. Accrual

Governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements and
fiduciary fund financial statements are presented on the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized when incurred.

2. Modified Accrual

The governmental fund financial statements are presented on the modified
accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues
are recorded when susceptible to accrual; i.e., both measurable and available.
“Available” means collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be
used to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures are generally recognized
under the modified accrual basis of accounting when the related liability is incurred.
The exception to this general rule is that principal and interest on general obligation
long-term debt, if any, is recognized when due.

Budget

The Town’s policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations. The budget is
presented on the modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles.

In accordance with Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No.
24, Accounting and Reporting for Certain Grants and Other Financial Assistance,
payments made by the State of Maine to the Maine State Retirement System for
teachers and certain other school employees are reported as offsetting revenues and
expenditures of the education fund.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenues per budgetary basis $ 6,968,029
Add: On-behalf payments 349,324
Total GAAP basis $ 7,317,353

Expenditures per budgetary basis $ 6,559,634
Add: On-behalf payments 349,324
Total GAAP basis $ 6,908,958

The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in
the financial statements:

1 Early in the second half of the year the Town prepares a budget for the fiscal
year beginning July 1. The operating budget includes proposed expenditures
and the means of financing them.

2. A meeting of the Town Council was called for the purpose of adopting the
proposed budget after public notice of the meeting was given.

3. The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the Town Council.

Deposits and Investments

The Town’s cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or
less from the date of acquisition.

It is the Town’s policy to value investments at fair value. None of the Town’s
investments are reported at amortized cost. For purposes of the statement of cash
flows, all highly liquid investments with a maturity of three months or less when
purchased are considered to be a cash equivalent. The Town Treasurer is authorized
by State Statutes to invest all excess funds in the following:

- Obligations of the U.S. Government, its agencies and instrumentalities
- Certificates of deposit and other evidence of deposits at banks, savings and

loan associations
- Repurchase agreements whose underlying collateral consist of the foregoing
- Money market mutual funds whose portfolios consist of the foregoing
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

It is the policy of the Town of Millinocket, Maine to invest public funds in a
manner in which will provide safety of principal with a market rate of return while
meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Town and conforming to all state and local
statutes governing the investment of public funds.

Receivables

Receivables include amounts due from governmental agencies. All receivables
are current and therefore due within one year. Receivables are reported net of an
allowance for uncollectible accounts and revenues net of uncollectibles. Allowances are
reported when accounts are proven to be uncollectible. The allowance for uncollectible
accounts is estimated to be $306,261 as of June 30, 2022. Accounts receivable netted
with allowances for uncollectibles were $3, 124315 for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Inventories

Inventories consist of expendable supplies held for consumption and are valued
at cost which approximates market, using the first-in/first-out (FIFO) method. The costs
of inventories are recorded as expenditures when used (consumption method). The
general fund inventory consists of diesel fuel and gasoline. The school lunch fund
inventory consists of school lunch supplies and food on hand at the end of the year.

Tax Acquired Property

Real property becomes tax acquired when tax liens placed on property and
associated costs remain unpaid eighteen months after the filing of the tax lien in
accordance with 36 M.R.S.A. § 943. The amount of the taxes and associated costs
become assets classified as tax acquired property receivables that are secured by the
real property that foreclosed.

After real property becomes tax acquired the Town Council is responsible for the
property and any disposition procedures allowed under the direction of the inhabitants
of the Town as authorized by the provisions of the Town Policy.

Interfund Receivables and Payables

Transactions between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing
arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are referred to as “due to/from
other funds”. While these balances are reported in fund financial statements, certain
eliminations are made in the preparation of the government-wide financial statements.
Any residual balances outstanding between governmental activities and business-type
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

activities are reported in the governmental-wide financial statements as “internal
balances”.

Transactions Between Funds

Legally authorized transfers are treated as interfund transfers and are included in
the results of operations of both Governmental and Proprietary Funds.

Capita! Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are
reported at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Additions, improvements and
other capital outlays that significantly extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized.
Infrastructure such as streets, traffic signals and signs are capitalized. Other costs
incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all
assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives.

The assets are valued at historical cost when available and estimated historical
cost where actual invoices or budgetary data was unavailable. Donated capital assets
are reported at their estimated fair market value on the date received. All retirements
have been recorded by eliminating the net carrying values.

Infrastructure assets include roads, bridges, underground pipe (other than related
to independently owned utilities), traffic signals, etc. These infrastructure assets are
likely to be the largest asset class of the Town. The Town has not retroactively
recorded infrastructure.

Estimated useful lives are as follows:

Buildings and land improvements 20 - 50 years
Infrastructure 50 - 100 years
Machinery and equipment 3 - 50 years
Vehicles 3 - 25 years

Long-term Obligations

The accounting treatment of long-term obligations depend on whether the assets
are used in governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether
they are reported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

All long-term obligations to be repaid from governmental and business-type
resources are reported as liabilities in government-wide statements. The long-term
obligations consist of bonds payable, a note from direct borrowings payable, accrued
compensated absences, litigation liability, net pension liability and net OPEB liability.

Long-term debt for governmental funds is not reported as liabilities in the fund
financial statements. The debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources and
payment of principal and interest reported as expenditures. The accounting for
proprietary funds is the same in the fund statements as it is in the government-wide
statements.

Pensions

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions and pension expense,
information about the fiduciary net position of the Maine Public Employees Retirement
System Participating Local District (PLD) Consolidated Plan and State Employee and
Teacher (SET) Plan and additions to/deductions from the PLD Consolidated and SET
Plans’ fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by the PLD Consolidated and SET Plans. For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value.

OPEB

For purposes of measuring the total OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB, management received
and relied on an actuarial report provided to them by the Maine Municipal Employees
Health Trust (MMEHT) and Maine Education Association Benefits Trust (MEAST),
which determined the School’s fiduciary net position as a single employer defined
benefit plan based on information provided solely by MMEHT and MEABT to complete
the actuarial report. Additions to/deductions from the MMEHT and MEABT OPEB
Plan’s fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they are
reported by MMEHT and MEABT. For this purpose, benefit payments (including
refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in
accordance with the benefit terms.

For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB and OPEB expense, information
about the fiduciary net position of the State Employee and Teacher (SET) Plan and
additions to/deductions from the SET Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the SET Plan. For this purpose,
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair
value.

Net Position

Net position represents the difference between all other elements in a statement
of financial position. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of
accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowing used
for those assets and adding back unspent proceeds. Net position is reported as
restricted when there are limitations imposed on its use either through enabling
legislations adopted by the Town or through external restrictions imposed by creditors,
grantors or laws or regulations of other governments. Unrestricted net position is the
net amount of the assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources that are not included in the determination of net investment in capital
assets or restricted net position.

Fund Balance

In the fund financial statements, fund balance for governmental funds is reported
in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the
Town is bound to honor constraints on the specific purpose for which amounts in the
funds can be spent. Fund balance is reported in five components - nonspendable,
restricted, committed, assigned and unassigned.

Nonspendable - This includes amounts that cannot be spent either because they
are not in spendable form or because they are legally or contractually required to be
maintained intact.

Restricted - This includes amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes
because of constitutional provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints
that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors or the laws or regulations
of other governments.

Committed - This includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes
determined by a formal action of the inhabitants of the Town or the Town Council in
accordance with its charter. The inhabitants of the Town, through Town meetings, are
the highest level of decision-making authority of the Town in that they must approve
certain annual budgets (School), bonding and appropriation of unassigned fund
balance. The Town Council must approve other annual budgets (capital and Town
operating) and spending. Commitments may be modified or rescinded in the same
manner they were established.
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Assigned - This includes amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as
restricted or committed but that are intended to be used for specific purposes. The
authority for assigning fund balance given by the Town Charter and is expressed by the
Town Council.

Unassigned - This includes all other spendable amounts. The general fund is the
only fund that reports a positive unassigned fund balance amount. Other governmental
funds besides the general fund can only report a negative unassigned fund balance
amount.

When an expenditure is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and
unrestricted fund balances are available, the Town considers restricted funds to have
been spent first. When an expenditure is incurred for which committed, assigned or
unassigned fund balances are available, the Town considers amounts to have been
spent first out of committed funds, then assigned funds and finally unassigned funds, as
needed, unless the Town meeting vote has provided otherwise in its commitment or
assignment actions.

Deferred Outflows and inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position and/or balance sheet will
at times report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption
of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The Town has two types of this
item, deferred outflows related to pensions and deferred outflows related to OPEB,
which are reported in the statement of net position.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet
will at times report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate
financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow
of resources (revenue) until that time. Deferred tax revenues, which arises only under a
modified accrual basis of accounting qualifies for reporting in this category.
Accordingly, this item is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Prepaid
taxes and deferred revenue also qualify for reporting in this category. These items are
reported in both the statements of net position and governmental funds balance sheet.
Deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB qualify for reporting in this category as
well. These items are reported only in the statement of net position. All items in this
category are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the
amounts become available.
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Revenue Recognition - Property Taxes - Modified Accrual Basis

The Town’s property tax for the current year was levied September 9, 2021 on
the assessed value listed as of April 1, 2021, for all real and personal property located
in the Town. Taxes were due on October 13, 2021 and January 13, 2022, Interest on
unpaid taxes commenced on October 14, 2021 and January 14, 2022, at 6% per
annum.

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. Available
includes those property tax receivables expected to be collected within sixty days after
year end. The remaining receivables have been recorded as deferred revenues.

The Town is permitted by the laws of the State of Maine to levy taxes up to 105%
of its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal period. The amount raised in
excess of 100% is referred to as overlay and amounted to $175,853 for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax
commitment date if taxes are delinquent. The Town has the authority to foreclose on
property eighteen months after the filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs
remain unpaid.

Program Revenues

Program revenues include all directly related income items applicable to a
particular program (charges to customers or applicants for goods, services or privileges
provided, operating or capital grants and contributions, including special assessments).

Operating/Nonoperating Proprietarj, Fund Revenues

Operating revenues consist mainly of direct revenue sources and/or charges for
services applicable to that fund’s ongoing operations. All revenue and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Encumbrance Accounting

Encumbrances are not liabilities and, therefore, are not recorded as expenditures
until receipt of material or service. For budgetary purposes, appropriations lapse at
fiscal year-end. The Town does not utilize encumbrance accounting for its general
fund.
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Use of Estimates

During the preparation of the Town’s financial statements, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets,
liabilities and disclosure of contingent items as of the date of the financial statements
and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses/expenditures during the reporting
period. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Town’s investment policies, which follow state statutes, require that all
investments be made considering the safe and sound investment of principal and
preservation of capital in the overall portfolio, maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet
day-to-day operations and other cash requirements and maximization of income, within
established investment risk guidelines, with consistent cash flows throughout the
budgetary cycle. These investment policies apply to all Town funds under the
Treasurer’s control.

Deposits:

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a failure of a
depository financial institution, the Town will not be able to recover its deposits. The
Town does not have a policy covering custodial credit risk for deposits. However, the
Town maintains deposits in qualifying financial institutions that are a member of the
FDIC or NCUSIF as defined in Title 30-A, Section 5706 of the Maine Revised Statutes.

At June 30, 2022, the Town’s cash and cash equivalents balance of $10,601,571
was comprised of bank deposits and cash equivalents amounting to $10,937,142. Bank
deposits and cash equivalents are adjusted primarily by outstanding checks and
deposits in transit to reconcile to the Town’s cash and cash equivalents balance. Of
these bank deposits, $2,041,995 was insured by federal depository insurance and
consequently was not exposed to custodial credit risk. The remaining bank deposits of
$8,895,147 were collateralized with securities held by the financial institution in the
Town’s name.
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Bank
Account Type Balance

Checking accounts $ 122,691
Savings accounts 123
CS account 1,874,837
Repurchase agreement 8,895,147
Cash and cash equivalents 44,344

$10,937,142

Investments:

Custodial credit risk for investments is that, in the event of failure of the
counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or
collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. Currently, the Town
does not have a policy for custodial credit risk for investments. However, in accordance
with its investment policy, the Town seeks to minimize custodial credit risk by doing
business with authorized institutions, depositories and broker/dealers. Of the Town’s
investments, $142,389 were covered by the Securities Investor Protection Corporation
(SIPC) and consequently were not exposed to custodial credit risk and $250,000 were
covered by National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund (NCUSIF) and consequently
were not exposed to custodial credit risk. The remaining investments of $32,617,
related to the School Department’s scholarship funds at Katadhin Federal Credit Union,
were uninsured and uncollateralized.

Interest rate risk - is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a formal investment policy that
limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value losses
arising from fluctuations in interest rates. Certificates of deposit held with local financial
institutions for $282,617 are excluded from interest rate risk as these investments are
considered held to maturity and are therefore not measured at fair value

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following investments and maturities:

Fair
Investment Type Value N/A <1 Year 1 - 5 Years >5 Years

Debt securities:
Stocks, options, ETFs

Equity securities:
Common stock - domestic

$ 131,940 $ 131,940 $ $ - $

10,449 10,449 - - -

$ 142,389 $ 142,389 $ - $ - $ -

38



TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair Value Hierarchy

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy
established by generally accepted accounting principles. Certificates of deposit held
with Katadhin Federal Credit Union for $284,050 are excluded from the fair value
hierarchy as these investments are considered held to maturity and are therefore not
measured at fair value. The Town has the following recurring fair value measurements
as June 30, 2022:

Investments by fair value level
Debt securities:

US. Agency Securities
Total debt securities

Equity securities:
common stock - domestic

Total equity securities

Total investments by fair value level

.June 30, 2022
Total

Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted Prices in Significant
Active Markets Other

for Identical Observable
Assets Inputs
(Level I) (Level II)

Equity securities classified in Level I of the
prices quoted in active markets for those securities.
of the fair value hierarchy are valued from publicly
pricing technique. Matrix pricing is used to value
relationship to benchmark quoted prices. The Town

Credit risk - Statutes for the State of Maine authorize the Town to invest in
obligations of the U.S. Treasury, agencies and instrumentalities, other states and
Canada. provided such securities are rated within the three highest grades by an
approved rating service of the State of Maine, corporate stocks and bonds within
statutory limits, financial institutions, mutual funds and repurchase agreements. The
Town does not have an investment policy on credit risk. Generally, the Town invests
excess funds in repurchase agreements and various insured certificates of deposit.

Amounts included in both the cash and cash equivalents and the investments, as
detailed in this Note, include School Department balances concerning student activities
and scholarships for which the Town Council and the Town Treasurer do not have
active procedural control. Legal council will determine the ultimate responsibility for
these balances.

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level Ill)

$ 131,940 $ - $ 131,940 $ -

131,940 - 131,940 -

10,449 10,449 - -

10,449 10,449 - -

$ 142,389 $ 10,449 $ 131,940 $ -

fair value hierarchy are valued using
Debt securities classified in Level II
reliable sources or using a matrix

securities based on the securities’
has no Level Ill investments.

39



TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 3 - INTERFUND RECEIVABLES AND PAYABLES

Interfund balances at June 30, 2022
receivables and payables:

General fund
Education fund
Capital projects funds
Nonmajor special revenue funds
Nonmajor permanent funds
Proprietary funds

consisted of the following individual fund

The result of amounts owed between funds are considered to be in the course of
normal operations by the Town. Reconciliation of the amounts owed between funds
may or may not be expected to be repaid within one year in their entirety due to the
recurring nature of these transactions during operations.

NOTE 4 - INTERFUND TRANSFERS

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following interfund transfers:

General fund
Education fund
Nonmajor special revenue funds

Interfund transfers are the results of
considered to be in the course of normal operations.

Receivables
(Due from)

Payable s
(Due to)

$ 534,105 $ 1,983,283
1,577,031 -

285,301 158,581
69,891 371,724

- 3,800
51,060 -

$ 2,517,388 $ 2,517,388

Transfers Transfers
In Out

$ - $ 2,908,076
2,952,036 14,157

14,157 43,960
$ 2,966,193 $ 2,966,193

legally authorized activity and are
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The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June
30, 2022:

Governmental activities
Non-depreciated assets:

Land
Construction in progress

Depreciated assets:
Land improvements
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and

vehicles
Infrastructure

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

Business-type activities
Non-depreciated assets:

Construction in progress

Depreciated assets:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery, equipment and

vehicles
Infrastructure

Balance,
7/1/2 1

Balance,
6/30/2 2

Current year depreciation expense:
General government
Public safety
Public works
Community services
Education

Subtotal governmental

Sewer department
Subtotal business-type

Total depreciation expense

$ 11,909
79,817

123,920
199,647
291,588
706,881

NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS

Additions Disposals

$ 205,841 $ - $ - $ 205,841
293,719 65,116 - 358,835
499,560 65,116 - 564,676

5,438,192 80,349 - 5,518,541
9,599,976 - - 9,599,976

7,229,458 556,257 (422,033) 7,363,682
3,441,980 - - 3,441,980

25,709,606 636,606 (422,033) 25,924,179
(1 5,874,207) (706,881) 422,033 (16,1 59,055)

9,835,399 (70,275) - 9,765,124
$ 10,334,959 $ (5,159) $ - $ 10,329,800

$ 277,369 $ - $ (250,788) $ 26,581
277,369 - (250,788) 26,581

4,824,153 - - 4,824,153

2,011,765 - (43,800) 1,967,965
8,427,740 2,214,064 — 10,641,804

15,263,658 2,214,064 (43,800) 1 7,433,922
(9,621,937) (186,257) 43,800 (9,764,394)
5,641,721 2,027,807 - 7,669,528

$ 5,919,090 $ 2,027,807 $ (250,788) $ 7,696,109

Less: accumulated depreciation

Net capital assets

186,257
186,257

$ 893,138
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The following is a summary of changes in the long-term debt for the year ended
June 30, 2022:

Governmental activities:

Bonds payable
Note from direct borrowings
payable

_______________ ______________ ______________ ____________________________

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Bonds payable

______________ ___________________________ ___________________________

Total business-type activities

The following is a summary of the outstanding bonds and a note from direct
borrowings payable:

Governmental Business-type
Bonds:

$1050000, 2008 Taxable Sewer Bond through the Clean Water Revolving
Loan Fund due in annual principal installments and semiannual interest
installments through April of 2028. Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 180%
per annum. Annual principal installments vary from $62,036 to $66,131. $

$1 .465,000, 2011 General Obligation Bond due in annual principal and interest
installments of $93,208 through November of 2025. Interest is charged at
0.00% per annum.

$450,000, 2019 General Obligation Bond due in annual principal installments
and semiannual interest installments through July of 2029. Interest is
charged at a fixed rate of 4.65% per annum. Annual principal installments
vary from $45,569 to $54,685. A note receivable in the amount of $450,000
has been recorded for the remaining amount of this bond due to a loan made
to Our Katadhin and GP West which was directly related to this debt.

$2,200,000, 2021 Taxable Sewer Bond through the Clean Water RevoMng
Loan Fund due in annual principal installments of $84,615 October 2047.
Interest is charged at a fixed rate of 1.00% per annum.

$805,000, 2021 Taxable Sewer Bond through the Clean Water Revolving Loan
Fund due in annual principal installments of $30,769 October 2047. Interest
is charged at a fixed rate of 1.00% per annum. Upon closing, this bond was
awarded $5,000 of principal forgiveness.

Total bonds payable

- 800,000

$ 937,352 $ 3,355,182

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

Balance,
7/1/21 Additions Deletions

Balance,

6/30/22
Current
Portion

$ 1,156,129 $ - $ (218,777) $ 937,352 $ 139,828

27,133 99.212 (13,312) 113.033 59,124

$ 1,183,262 $ 99,212 $ (232,089) $ 1,050,385 $ 198,952

$ 3,410,770 $ - $ (55,588) $ 3,355,182 $ 171,973

$ 3,410,770 $ - $ (55,588) $ 3,355,182 $ 171,973

532. 92 1

404,431

$ 355,182

2,200,000
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Go’uern mental Business-type

Note from direct borrowings payable;

$65,614. 2018 Capital Lease payable to US Rank for photocopiers due in

annual installments of $14350 through July of 2022 Interest is charged at a

bed rate of 3.76% per annum. $ 13.821 $

Three year lease with Stryker Sales Corportation for medial equipment with

annual principal and interest payments of $31,316. 31,316

Sixty month lease with Xerox for copier equipment with monthy principal and

interest payments of $116. 5,220

Fie year lease with Stryker Sales Corporation for medical equipment with

annual principal and interest payments of $12,595.

Total note from direct borrowings payable

62.676 -

$ 113,033 $ -

The following is a summary of outstanding bond and note from direct borrowings
payable principal and interest requirements for the following fiscal years ending June
30:

Governmental Activities Business-type Activities
Note from Direct Borrowings

Bonds Payable Payable Bonds Payable
Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest

$ 139,828
140,903
141,963
143,127
144,278
227,253

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028-2032
2033-2037
2038-2042
2 043-2047
2 048-2052

$ 17,713
15,520
13,317
10,983

8,635
11,282

$ 59,124
14,732
13,987
12,595
12,595

Total
Debt Service

$$ 529 $ 171,973
- 172,993

- 174,029
- 175,084
- 176,160
- 638,791
- 576,923
- 576,923
- 576,923

$ 35,816
33,644
31,453
29,244
27,015

107,844
77,885
49,038
20,192

________

577
412,708

424,983
377,792
374,749
371,033
368,683
985,170
654.808
625.961
597.115
115,960

4896,254

- - -
- 115,383

$ 937,352 $ 77,450 $ 113,033 $ 529 $ 3,355,182 $ $
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

No interest costs were capitalized during the period. The amount of interest
costs incurred and charged to expense for the business-type activities for the year
ended June 30, 2022 was $34,957.

All bonds payable are direct obligations of the Town, for which its full faith and
credit are pledged. The Town is not obligated for any special assessment debt. All
debt is payable from taxes levied on all taxable property within the Town.

NOTE 7 - OTHER LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

The following is a summary of changes in other long-term obligations for the year
ended June 30, 2022:

Balance, Balance,
7/1/21 6/30/22

Governmental activities:
Accrued compensated
absences

Litigation liability
Net pension liability
Net OPEB liability

____________________________________

Business-type activities:
Accrued compensated
absences

Refer to Notes
long-term obligations.

NOTE 8 - ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

The Town’s policies regarding vacation and sick time do permit employees to
accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick leave. The liability for these
compensated absences is recorded as long-term obligations in the government-wide
financial statements. In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report only
the compensated absence liability payable from expendable available financial
resources, while the proprietary funds report the liability as it is incurred. As of June 30,
2022, the Town’s liability for compensated absences is $304,763.

Additions Deletions
Current
Portion

$ 230,380 $ - $ (2,790) $ 227,590 $ 22,759
45,000 - (45,000) - -

1,487,849 1,023,572 (2,473011) 38,410 -

9,719,085 358,220 (2,774,528) 7,302,777 -

$ 11,482,314 $ 1,381,792 $(5,295,329) $ 7,568,777 $ 22,759

$ 68,054 $ 9,119 $ - $ 77,173 $ 7,717

8, 16, 17, 18 and 19 for more detailed information regarding other
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NOTE 9 - NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is the calculation of the net investment in capital assets for the
Town at June 30, 2022:

Governmental
activities

$ 26,488,855
(16,159,055)

(1,050,385)
9,279,415

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following restricted net position:

General fund
Education fund
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E)
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I)

S

Business-type
activities
17,460,503
(9,764,394)
(3,355,182)
4,340,927

$ 584,949
611,151
848,786

39,184
$ 2,084,070

NOTE 11 - NONSPENDABLE FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following nonspendable fund balances;

General fund:
Inventory
Tax acquired property

Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E)
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I)

$ 46,273
67,738
25,509
16,401

$ 155,921

Invested in capital assets
Accumulated depreciation
Outstanding capital related debt

NOTE 10- RESTRICTED NET POSITION

$ $
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NOTE 12 - RESTRICTED FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following restricted fund balances:

General fund:
Northern Penobscot Association $ 440
CDBG match donation 2,000
DARE 32
Record preservation 500
4th of July fireworks 7,605
Other events 835
Dog care 5,199
AARP Challenge grant 227
Thriving Older Adults
Rec community foundation grant
American Rescue Plan Act 2021

Education fund
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E)
Nonmajor permanent funds (Schedule I)

500
4,000

449,600
611,151
823,277

22,783
928,149$1

NOTE 13 - COMMITTED FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following committed fund balances:

Education fund $ 392,360
Capital projects fund 308,983
Nonmajor special revenue funds (Schedule E) 74,025

$ 775,368
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NOTE 14 - ASSIGNED FUND BALANCES

At June 30, 2022, the Town had the following assigned fund balances:

General fund:
Carryforwards:

FY23
Fire and ambulance unspent capital

Airport terminal
Municipal revaluation
Municipal revaluation payback
FY23 Bates Street culvert
FY23 Budget excl culvert
Loader motor repair

Nonmajor special revenue funds

NOTE 15-OVERLAPPING DEBT

$ 66,629
19706
52,148

102,745
16,884

150,000
600,000

10,000
105,859
123,971

The Town is responsible for its proportionate share of County debt.
30, 2022. Penboscot County had no outstanding debt.

As of June

Town employees contribute to the Maine Public Employees Retirement System
(MainePERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan
established by the Maine State Legislature. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the
Participating Local District (PLD) Consolidated Plan’s advisory group, which reviews the
terms of the plan and periodically makes recommendations to the Legislature to amend
the terms. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly available
financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information for the Consolidated Plan. That report may be obtained online at
www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

NOTE 16 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

PARTICIPATING LOCAL DISTRICT CONSOLIDATED PLAN

Plan Description

for jet fuel purchase

(Schedule E)
$1
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NOTE 16 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Benefits Provided

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The System’s retirement programs provide defined retirement
benefits based on members’ average final compensation and service credit earned as of
retirement. Vesting (i.e., eligibility for benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon
the earning of five years of service credit (effective October 1 F 1999, the prior ten-year
requirement was reduced by legislative action to five years for employees of PLDs). In
some cases, vesting occurs on the earning of one year of service credit immediately
preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. For PLD members, normal
retirement age is 60 or 65. The monthly benefit of members who retire before normal
retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a
statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below her/his normal
retirement age at retirement. The System also provides disability and death benefits
which are established by contract with PLD employers under applicable statutory
provisions. As of June 30, 2021, there were 305 employers in the plan.

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employee contributions
are refundable with interest! credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of
accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights.
The annual rate of interest credited to members’ accounts is set by the System’s Board
of Trustees and is currently 0.93%.

Contributions

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers
and by earnings on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer
normal cost contributions and by investment earnings. The Town’s fire and ambulance
department employees are part of the PLDs special plan “4C” and are required to
contribute 8.3% of their annual salary, while all other employees are part of regular plan
“AC” and are required to contribute 7.5% of their annual salary. The Town is required to
contribute the actuarially determined rates of 9.8% for special plan ‘4C” members’
covered payroll and 10.3% for regular plan “AC” members’ covered payroll during the
year. The contribution rates of plan members and the Town are established and may be
amended by the Maine Public Employee Retirement Systems advisory group. The
Town’s contribution to the MainePERS PLD Consolidated Plan for the year ended June
30, 2022 was $188,267.
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NOTE 16 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

STATE EMPLOYEE AND TEACHER PLAN

Plan Description

All school teachers, plus other qualified educators, participate in the Maine Public
Employees Retirement System’s (MainePERS) State Employee and Teacher (SET)
Plan. The teacher’s program is a multi-employer cost-sharing plan with a special
funding situation, established by the Maine State Legislature. The State of Maine is also
a non-employer contributing entity in that the State pays the initial unfunded actuarial
liability on behalf of teachers, while school districts contribute the normal cost,
calculated actuarially, for their teacher members. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the State
Legislature. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial and actuarial information for the SET
Plan. That report may be obtained online at www.mainepers.org or by contacting the
System at (207) 512-3100.

Benefits Provided

The Maine Public Employees Retirement System provides retirement and
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments and death benefits to plan members
and beneficiaries. The authority to establish and amend benefit provisions rests with the
State Legislature. The System’s retirement programs provide defined retirement
benefits based on members’ average final compensation and service credit earned as of
retirement. Vesting (i.e., eligibility for benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs upon
the earning of five years of service credit (effective October 1, 1999, the prior ten year
requirement was reduced by legislative action to five years for State employees and
teachers). In some cases, vesting occurs on the earning of one year of service credit
immediately preceding retirement at or after normal retirement age. Normal retirement
age for State employees and teachers is age 60, 62 or 65. The normal retirement age is
determined by whether a member had met certain creditable service requirements on
specific dates, as established by statute. The monthly benefit of members who retire
before normal retirement age by virtue of having at least 25 years of service credit is
reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for each year of age that a member is below
her/his normal retirement age at retirement. The System also provides disability and
death benefits which are established by statute for State employee and teacher
members. As of June 30, 2021, there were 238 employers, including the State of
Maine, participating in the plan.
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NOTE 16- DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employee contributions
are refundable with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of
accumulated contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights.
The annual rate of interest credited to members’ accounts is set by the System’s Board
of Trustees and is currently 0.93%.

Contributions

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers
and by earnings on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer
normal cost contributions and by investment earnings. The Department’s teachers are
required to contribute 7.65% of their compensation to the retirement system. The
Department’s payroll for teachers covered by this program was approximately
$2,646,435 for the year ended June 30, 2022. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated requires the State to contribute 14.29% of the Department’s contractually
required contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when
combined with employee contributions, is expected to finance the costs of benefits
earned by employees during the year, with an additional amount to finance any
unfunded accrued liability (UAL). Contributions paid by the State were approximately
$341,584 for the year ended June 30, 2022. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated also requires the Department to contribute at an actuarially determined
normal cost rate of 3.84%, which totaled $124,432 for 2022. In addition, the
Department is required to contribute toward the UAL of the plan and pay a small
percentage of payroll towards the administrative costs for federally funded teachers,
which amounts to 14.89% of compensation and totaled $38,128 the year ended June
30, 2022.

Pension Liabilities/(Assets)

PLO Consolidated Plan

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability/(asset) of ($90,333) for its
proportionate share of the net pension liabilitiesf(assets) for the plan. The net pension
liabilities/(assets) were measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension
liabilities/(assets) used to calculate the net pension liabilities/(assets) was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s proportion of the net pension
liabilities/(assets) were based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of
contributions to each pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all PLDs,
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town’s proportion was 0.281095%, which
was a decrease of 0.03946% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.
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NOTE 16 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

SET Plan

At June 30! 2022, the Town reported a liability for its proportionate share of the
net pension liability that reflected a reduction for State pension support provided to the
Town. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net
pension liability, the related State support and the total portion of the net pension liability
that was associated with the Town were as follows:

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability $ 128,743

State’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability associated with the Town 1680,691

Total $ 1,809,434

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and the total pension
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial
valuation as of that date. The Towns proportion of the net pension liability was based
on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan
relative to the projected contributions of all participating school units and the State
actuarially determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town’s proportion was 0.015221%, which
was a decrease of 0.00209% from its proportion measured as of June 30, 2020.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized total pension expense
of $961,119 for the PLD plan and total pension expense of $489674 and revenue of
$341,584 for support provided by the State of Maine for the SET plan. At June 30,
2022. the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:
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Differences between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumpons
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension plan investments
Changes in proportion and differences between

employer contñbutions and proportionate
share of contributions

Contributions subsequent to the
measurement date

Total

PLD Plan SET Plan
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources of Resources of Resources

$ 58,434 $ 6,140 $ 1908 $ 2,632
303,332 - 87,775 -

- 1,231,276 - 175,423

- 104.180 21,596 29,847

188,267 - 162,561 -

$ 550:033 $ 1,341.596 S 273,840 $ 207.902

$188,267 for the PLD plan and $162,561 for the SET plan were reported as
deferred outflows of resources related to pensions resulting from Town contributions
subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts reported as deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized in pension expense as follows:

2022
2023
2024
2025
2026
Thereafter

Plan year ended June 30:

P LD
P Ian

SET
P Ian

$ (194,819) $
(162,581)
(280,282)
(342,147)

(23,765)
15,887

(39,848)
(48,897)
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NOTE 16 - DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The respective collective total pension liability for the plans was determined by
an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2021, using the following methods and
assumptions applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method

The Entry Age Normal actuarial funding method is used to determine costs.
Under this funding method, the total employer contribution rate consists of two
elements: the normal cost rate and the unfunded actuarial liability (UAL) rate.

The individual entry age normal method is used to determine liabilities. Under the
individual entry age normal method, a normal cost rate is calculated for each employee.
This rate is determined by taking the value, as of age at entry into the plan, of the
member’s projected future benefits and dividing it by the value, also as of the member’s
entry age, of his or her expected future salary. The normal cost for each member is the
product of the member’s pay and normal cost rate. The normal cost for the group is the
sum of the normal costs for all members.

Experience gains and losses, i.e., decreases or increases in liabilities and/or in
assets when actual experience differs from the actuarial assumptions, affect the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability.

Asset Valuation Method

The actuarial valuation employs a technique for determining the actuarial value of
assets which reduces the impact of short-term volatility in the market value. The
specific technique adopted in this valuation recognizes in a given year one-third of the
investment return that is different from the actuarial assumption for investment return.

Amortization

The net pension liability of the PLD Consolidated Plan is amortized on a level
percentage of payroll using a method where a separate twenty-year closed period is
established annually for the gain or loss for that year.

The net pension liability of the State Employee and Teacher Retirement Plan is
amortized on a level percentage of payroll over the amortization period then in effect
under statutory and constitutional requirements. All other gains, losses and changes
are amortized over ten-year periods beginning on the date as of which they occur.
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Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the actuary for funding purposes
as of June 30, 2021 are as follows:

investment Rate of Return - For the PLD and State Employee and Teacher
Plans, 6.50% per annum for the year ended June 30, 2021, compounded
annually.

Salanj increases, Merit and Inflation - Members of the consolidated plan for
PLDs, 275% - 11.48%; teachers, 2.80% - 13.03% per year.

Mortality Rates - For the PLD Consolidated Plan and the State Employee and
Teacher Plan, the rates are based on the 2010 Pubhc Plan General Benefits-
Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, for males and females, projected
generationally using the RPEC_2020 model.

Cost of Living Benefit Increases - for PLD Consolidated 1.91% and Teacher
Plans, 2.20% per annum for the year ended June 30, 2021.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan assets was determined
using a building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real
rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation)
are developed for each major class of assets. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of
return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. Best
estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as June 30, 2021 are summarized in the following
table.

Long—term
Expected

Target Real Rate of
Asset Class Allocation Return

Public equities 30.0% 6.0%
US Government 7.5% 2.3%
Private equity 15.0% 7.6%
Real assets:

Realestate 10.0% 5.2%
Infrastructure 10.0% 5.3%
Natural resources 5.0% 5.0%

Traditional credit 7.5% 3.0%
Alternative credit 5.0% 7.2%
Diversitiers 10.0% 5.9%
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Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the collective total pension liability was 6.50%
for 2021 for each of the Plans. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current
contribution rate and that employer and non-employer entity contributions will be made
at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on these assumptions, the
pension plans fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected
future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit
payments to determine the total pension liability.

The following table shows how the collective net pension liability as of June 30,
2021 would change if the discount rate used was one percentage point lower or one
percentage point higher than the current rate. The current rate is 6.50% for each of the
Plans.

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

PLD Plan:
Discount rate 5.50% 6.50% 7.50%

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
liability/(asset) $ 1,285,495 S (90,333) $ (1,228,324)

SET Plan:
Discount rate 5.75% 6.75% 7.75%

Town’s proportionate share of the net pension
Iiabilityl(asset) $ 338,094 S 128,743 $ (45,563)
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Changes in Net Pension Liability

Each employer’s share of the collective net pension liability is equal to the
collective net pension liability multiplied by the employer’s proportionate share as of
June 30, 2021 as shown in the schedules of employer and non-employer contributing
entity allocations. Changes in net pension liability are recognized in pension expense for
the year ended June 30, 2021 with the following exceptions.

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience with regard to economic
or demographic factors is recognized in pension expense using a straight-line
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized
as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resource. For 2021 and 2020, this was three years for
the SET Plan and the PLD Consolidated Plan. For 2019, this was three years for the
SET Plan and four years for the PLD Consolidated Plan. For 2018 and 2017, this was
three years for both plans; prior to 2017, this was four years for the PLD Consolidated
Plan.

Differences between Expected and Actual In vestment Earnings

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are recognized in
pension expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year
period. The first year is recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are
shown as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

Changes in Assumptions

Differences due to changes in assumptions aboUt future economic or
demographic factors or other inputs are recognized in pension expense using a straight-
line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The actuarial assumptions
used for the year ended June 30, 2021 valuation were based on the results of an
actuarial experience study for the period of June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2020. The
first year is recognized as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. Please refer to
the Actuarial Methods and Assumptions section for information relating to the use of
assumptions.
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Changes in Proportion and Differences between Employer Contributions and
Proportionate Share of Contributions

Differences resulting from a change in proportionate share of contributions and
differences between total employer contributions and the employer’s proportionate
share of contributions are recognized in pension expense using a straight-line
amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected remaining
service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The first year is recognized
as pension expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of
resources or deferred inflows of resources. Differences between total employer
contributions and the employer’s proportionate share of contributions may arise when
an employer has a contribution requirement for an employer specific liability.

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to the Plan can be
found in the MainePERS’ 2021 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report available
online at www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

NOTE 17- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) PLAN

MAINE MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES HEALTH TRUST

Plan Description

The Town and Town retirees contribute to the Town’s OPEB Plan with the Maine
Municipal Employees Health Trust (MMEHT), a single employer defined benefit plan.
Contributions and membership in this Plan are voluntary and may be terminated at any
time by the Town and/or the Town retirees. MMEHT is a fully funded, self-insured trust
which provides benefits to municipal and quasi-municipal organizations and county
governments and acts as the agent to the Town concerning administration of this Plan.
Title 24-A Chapter 81 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated authorizes the
regulation of MMEHT as a Multiple Employer Welfare Arrangement by the State of
Maine Bureau of Insurance. Benefits and plans are designed and governed by MMEHT
participants and are administered by a number of third-party administrators contracted
by MMEHT. No assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criteria of paragraph 4
of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment
Benefits Other Than Pensions. MMEHT issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may
be obtained by MMEHT at (800) 852-8300.
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Benefits Provided

This Plan provides medical/prescription drug benefits during retirement to
Medicare and non-Medicare retirees and their surviving spouses with varying levels of
benefits determined by voluntary plan selection by the retiree as well as applicable
Medicare statutes and regulations. The Plan also provides an automatic life insurance
benefit of $2,000 to participants which includes a surviving spouse benefit for the same.
The employee must meet the minimum requirement of age 55 with at least 5 years of
service at retirement to be eligible for the Plan. The retiree must enroll when first
eligible and continue coverage without interruption.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At January 1 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Active members 23
Retirees and spouses 10
Total 33

Contributions

Retiree and spouse premium amounts are funded by the retiree at the rate for
the coverage elected by the retiree. Premium rates are those determined by the
MMEI-ITs Board of Trustees to be actuarially sufficient to pay anticipated claims.
Premiums for retiree life insurance coverage are factored into the premiums paid for
basic coverage. Retirees and spouses must contribute 100% of the premium amounts.
The sponsoring employer pays the remainder of the premium. Medical benefits are
provided for the life of the retiree and surviving spouses.

Retiree Premium Amounts:

The following monthly premium amounts were reported on the individual data file.
Actual plan election was reflected in expected retiree premium amounts.

Single Family
Pre-Medicare

P05 C $ 1,141 $ 2,559

Medicare $ 601 $ 1,201
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Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $700,944 for its total OPEB
liability for this Plan. The total OPEB liability was measured as of January 1, 2022 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s total OPEB
liability was based on the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which does not
reflect future changes in benefits, subsidies, penalties, taxes or administrative costs that
may be required as a result of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010
(ACA) related legislation and regulations.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB revenue of
$18,481. At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments
Contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

MM F FIT
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

$ - $ 59,354
90,659 9,687

12,247 -

$ 103,106 $ 69,041

$12,247 were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB
resulting from Town contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be
recognized as a reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2023.
Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Plan year ended June 30

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

MMEHT

$ 3,101
12,765

5,932
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Discount Rate

The discount rate is the assumed interest rate used for converting projected
dollar related values to a present value as of the valuation date of January 1, 2022. The
discount rate determination is based on the high-quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in
effect for 20-year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer
20-Bond GO Index. The rate of 2.06% per annum for June 30, 2022 was based upon a
measurement date of December 30, 2020. The sensitivity of net OPEB liability to
changes in discount rate are as follows:

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position

_________________ _________________

Net OPEB liability

_____________ _____________

Plan fiduciary net position
the total OPEB liability

Healthcare Trend

The healthcare trend is the assumed dollar increase in dollar-related values in
the future due to the increase in the cost of health care. The healthcare cost trend rate
is the rate of change in per capita health claim costs over time as a result of factors
such as medical inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design and
technological developments. The sensitivity of net OPEB liability to changes in
healthcare cost trend rates are as follows:

1% Healthcare 1%

Decrease Trend Rates - -
- Increase

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Net OPEB liability

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of
the total OPEB liability

1% Discount 1%
Decrease Rate Increase

1.06% 2.06% 3.06%

$ 788,575 $ 700,944 $ 627,084

$ 788,575 $ 700,944 $ 627,084

as a percentage of
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

$ 627,007 $ 700,944 $ 788,887

$ 627007 $ 700,944 $ 788,887

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability for the Plan was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of January 1, 2022, using the following methods and assumptions applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method

The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method is used to determine costs. Under
this funding method, a normal cost rate is determined as a level percent of pay for each
active Plan member and then summed to produce the total normal cost for this Plan.
The unfunded actuarial liability is the difference between the actuarial liability and the
actuarial value of assets.

Far medical and pharmacy, historical claims and census records were
assembled and provided through June 30, 2021. Medicare and non-Medicare eligible
medical and prescription experience were analyzed. It was assumed that current
enrollment distribution of benefit options would remain constant in the future for retirees.
The cost was distributed based on the current covered population and the actuary’s
standard age curves which vary by age, gender and Medicare status. Children costs
are converted to a load on the non-Medicare retirees which implicitly assumes that
future retirees will have the same child distribution as current retirees.

Assumptions

The actuarial assumptions used in the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation were
adopted by the Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating Local
Districts as of June 30, 2021 and based on the experience study covering the period
from June 30, 2016 through June 30, 2020. As of January 1,2021, they are as follows:

Discount Rate - 2.06% per annum for year end 2022 reporting. 2.12% per
annum for year end 2021 reporting.

Trend Assumptions:

Medical Trend assumptions were developed using the Society of
Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model. The SOA model was
released in December 2007 and version 2022 fa was used for this valuation.
The following assumptions were input into this model:
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Variable Rate

Rate of Inflation 2.40%
Rate of Growth in Real Income/GDP per capital 2031+ 1.10%
Extra Trend due to Taste/Technology 2031+ 1.00%
Expected Health Share of GDP 2031 19.00%
Health Share of GDP Resistance Point 20.00%
Year for Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth 2042

The SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model and its baseline projection are
based on an econometric analysis of historical U.S. medical expenditures and the
judgements of experts in the field. The long-run baseline projection and input variables
have been developed under the guidance of the SOA Project Oversight Group.

The trends selected from 2022 to 2025 were based on plan design, population
weighting, renewal projections, and market analysis. For years 2026 to 2030, these are
interpolated from 2025 to 2031 (which is the product of the inflation, GDP and extra
trend rate assumptions).

Deductibles, Co-payments and Out of Pocket Maximums are assumed to
increase at the above trend rates. The ultimate trend rate reflects an assumed nominal
per capital GDP growth.

Administrative and claims expense: 3% per annum

Future plan changes: It is assumed that the current Plan and cost-sharing
structure remains in place for all future years.

Retirement Rates - Rates vary for plans with no explicit employer subsidy (or
payment) versus those plans defining an explicit employer subsidy (or payment).
The rates are based on assumptions from the Maine State Retirement
Consolidated Plan for Participating Local District at June 30, 2021.

Retirement Contribution Increases - Assumed to increase at the same rate as
incurred claims. A constant cost sharing in plan design between employer and
employees is assumed.

Family Enrollment Composition - For males, 50% of future retirees under the age
of 65 and 50% of current retirees are married and elect spousal coverage while
females are at 30% for both. 25% of male and female future retirees over the
age of 65 are married and elect spousal coverage.
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Age Difference of Spouses - Husbands are assumed to be 3 years older than
wives.

Administrative expenses - Included in the per capita claims cost.

Disability Incidence - Disabled lives will be considered active employees and will
not be valued separately.

Salary Increase Rate - 2.75% per year assumed using the level percentage of
pay entry age method.

Dates of Hire - Needed to be assumed for some employees and will be based on
the average age at hire for similar employees.

Rate of Mortality:

Healthy Annuitant- Based on 112% and 118.5% of the 2010 Public Plan General
Benefits-Weighted Healthy Retiree Mortality Table, respectively, for males and
females. The proposed rates are projected generationally using the RPEC_2020
model, with an ultimate rate of 1.00% for ages 80 and under, grading down to
0.05% at age 95, and further grading down to 0.00% at age 115, along with
convergence to the ultimate rates in the year 2027. All other parameters used in
the RPEC 2020 model are those included in the published MP-2020 scale. As
prescribed by the Trust, mortality rates were taken from the assumptions for the
Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating Local Districts at
June 30, 2021.

Active Employees - Rates of mortality are based on 83.5% and 88.6% of the
2010 Public Plan General Benefits- Weighted Employee Mortality Table,
respectively, for males and females. These rates are generationally projected
using the same version of the RPEC_2020 model as described in the healthy
annuitant mortality. As prescribed by the Trust, mortality rates were taken from
the assumptions for the Maine State Retirement Consolidated Plan for
Participating Local Districts at June 30, 2021.

Retiree Continuation Percentage:

Medicare participant retirees - 100% assumed to continue in the plan
elected

Pre-Medicare plan retirees and active participants - 75% assumed to
continue coverage once Medicare-eligible
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Pre-Medicare plan spouses and spouses of active participants - 50%
assumed to continue coverage once Medicare-eligible

Changes in Net OPEB Liability

Changes in net OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense for the year
ended June 30, 2022 with the following exceptions:

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience are recognized in OPEB
expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the
average expected remaining service lives of active and inactive members in each plan.
The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources. The difference
between expected and actual experience as of January 1,2022 was $81,172.

Changes in Assumptions

Differences due to changes in assumptions about future economic, demographic
or claim and expense factors or other inputs are recognized in OPEB expense using a
straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the average expected
remaining service lives of active and inactive members in each plan. The actuarial
assumptions used in the January 1, 2022 actuarial valuation were adopted by the Maine
State Retirement Consolidated Plan for Participating Local Districts as of June 30, 2021
and based on the experience study covering the period from June 30, 2016 through
June 30, 2020. The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years
are shown as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

Differences between Projected and Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are recognized in
OPEB expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period.
The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to this Plan can be
found at the Town Office at 197 Penobscot Avenue, Millinocket, Maine 04462.
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MAINE PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

STATE EMPLOYEE AND TEACHER PLAN

Plan Description

All School teachers, plus other qualified educators, participate in the Maine
Public Employees Retirement System’s (Ma1nePERS) State Employee and Teacher
(SET) Plan. The teacher’s program is a multi-employer cost-sharing plan with a special
funding situation, established by the Maine State Legislature. The State of Maine is
also a non-employer contributing entity in that the State pays the initial unfunded
actuarial liability on behalf of teachers, while school districts contribute the normal cost,
calculated actuarially, for their teacher members. Title 5 of the Maine Revised Statutes
Annotated assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the State
Legislature. As of June 30, 2021, there were 228 employers, including the State of
Maine, participating in the plan. The Maine Public Employees Retirement System
issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial and actuarial
information for the SET Plan. That report may be obtained online at
www.mainepers.org or by contacting the System at (800) 451-9800.

Benefits Provided

The Group Life Insurance Plan (the Plan) provides basic group life insurance
benefits, during retirement, to retirees who participated in the Plan prior to retirement for
a minimum of 10 years (the 10-year participation requirement does not apply to
recipients of disability retirement benefits). The level of coverage in retirement is initially
set to an amount equal to the retiree’s average final compensation. The initial amount
of basic life is then subsequently reduced at the rate of 15% per year to the greater of
40% of the initial amount or $2,500.

Contributions

Life insurance benefits are funded by contributions from members and
employers. Premium rates are those determined by the MainePERS’s Board of
Trustees to be actuarially sufficient to pay anticipated claims. For Department’s
teachers, the premiums for retiree life insurance coverage are factored into the
premiums paid for basic coverage while participants are active members. Premiums for
basic life insurance coverage for retired teachers are paid by the State as the total dollar
amount of each year’s annual required contribution. The State participates in the SET
Plan as a non-employer contributing entity in that the State pays the actuarially
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determined premium contributions associated with retired teachers. The State’s
contribution to the Plan for the year ended June 30, 2022 were approximately $7,740.

OPEB Liabilities and OPEB Expense

At June 30, 2022, the School reported a liability for its proportionate share of the
net OPEB liability that reflected a reduction for State OPEB support provided to the
School. The total portion of the net OPEB liability that was associated with the School
were as follows:

Town’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability $

State’s proportionate share of the net OPEB
liability associated with the School

Total

33,043

$ 33,043

Plan Description

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the District recognized net OPEB expense of
$7,776 and revenue of $7,776 for support provided by the State of Maine.

NOTE 19- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) MEDICAL PLAN

MAINE EDUCATION ASSOCIATION BENEFITS TRUST

The State of Maine and School retirees contribute to the School’s OPEB Plan
with the Maine Education Association Benefits Trust (MEABT), a single employer
defined benefit plan. Contributions and membership in this Plan are voluntary and may
be terminated at any time by the State, the School and/or the School retirees. MEABT
is a fully funded, self-insured trust which provides benefits to education organizations
and acts as the agent to the School concerning administration of this Plan. Title 24-A
Chapter 81 of the Maine Revised Statutes Annotated authorizes the regulation of
MEABT as a Multiple Employer Welfare Arrangement by the State of Maine Bureau of
Insurance. Benefits and plans are designed and governed by MEABT participants and
are administered by a number of third-party administrators contracted by MEABT. No
assets are accumulated in a trust that meets the criterial of paragraph 4 of GASB
Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefits
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Other Than Pensions. MEABT issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information. That report may be
obtained by contacting MEABT at (888) 622-4418.

Benefits Provided

This Plan provides medical/prescription drug benefits during retirement to
Medicare and non-Medicare retirees and their spouses with varying levels of benefits
determined by voluntary plan selection by the retiree as well as applicable Medicare
statutes and regulations. The employee must have participated in a plan for the 12
months prior to retirement and have 10 years (under age 50) or 5 years (age 50 or
above) of continuous active service and enrollment in the health plan to be eligible for
this Plan. The retiree who terminates coverage may elect to re-enroll in coverage if they
participated in the health plan for 12 months prior to terminating coverage, as long as
re-enrollment occurs within 5 years from coverage termination and as long as the retiree
is not past age 62. The retiree must have maintained continuous health insurance
coverage during the break in coverage with MEABT to be eligible for re-enrollment and
is only eligible for re-enrollment once.

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2022, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms:

Active members 3
Retirees and spouses 95
Total 98

Cost Sharing Provisions!Contributions

Retirees are eligible for a State subsidy of 45% of the blended single premium for
the retiree. The blended premium is determined by blending rates for active members
and retired members, as determined by State law. The retiree contributes the
remaining 55% of blended single premium and spouse must contribute 100% of the
blended premium amount coverage elected.

Employee/Retiree Premium Amounts:

The following monthly premium amounts were reported on the individual data file.
Actual plan election was reflected in expected retiree premium amounts.
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BENEFIT (OPEB) MEDICAL PLAN

I
Person

2
Persons

P re-Medicare

Choice Plus
Standard
Group

$ 934
$ 1,009
$ 388

$ 2,105
$ 2,274
$ 776

Total OPEB Liability, OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows
and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

of Resources

At June 30, 2022, the Town reported a liability of $6,601,833 for its total OPEB
liability for this Plan. The total OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 and
was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town’s total OPEB
liability was based on the Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method which does not
reflect future changes in benefits, subsidies, penalties, taxes or administrative costs that
may be required as a result of the Patient Protection and Affordable Care Act of 2010
(ACA) related legislation and regulations.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Town recognized OPEB expense of
$2,422,262. At June 30, 2022, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Differences between expected and actual
experience

Changes of assumptions
Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on OPEB plan investments
Contributions subsequent to the

measurement date

Total

MEABT
Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources

$ - $

$ - $
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$0 were reported as deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB resulting
from School contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a
reduction of the net OPEB liability in the year ended June 30, 2023. Other amounts
reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Discount Rate

The discount rate is the assumed interest rate used for converting projected
dollar related values to a present value as of June 30, 2021. The discount rate
determination is based on the high-quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in effect for 20-
year, tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO
Index. The rate of 2.16% per annum for June 30, 2021 was based upon a
measurement date of June 24, 2021. The sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes
in discount rate are as follows:

1% Discount 1%

1.16% 2.16% 3.16%

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Net OPEB liability

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability

Plan year ended June 30:
2023
2024
2025
2026
2027
Thereafter

MEABT

$

Decrease Rate Increase

$ 7,303,144 $ 6,601,833 $ 6,003,956

$ 7,303,144 $ 6,601,833 $ 6,003,956

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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Healthcare Trend

The healthcare trend is the assumed dollar increase in dollar-related values in
the future due to the increase in the cost of health care. The healthcare cost trend rate
is the rate of change in per capita health claim costs over time as a result of factors
such as medical inflation, utilization of healthcare services, plan design and
technological developments. The sensitivity of total OPEB liability to changes in
healthcare cost trend rates are as follows:

1% Healthcare 1%
Decrease Trend Rates Increase

Total OPEB liability
Plan fiduciary net position
Net OPEB liability

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage
of the total OPEB liability

$ 5,966,296 $ 6,601,833 $ 7335562

S 5,966,296 $ 6.601,833 $ 7,335562

0.00% 0.00% 0.00%

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions

The total OPEB liability for the Plan was determined by an actuarial valuation as
of June 30, 2021, using the following methods and assumptions applied to all periods
included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method

The Entry Age Normal Actuarial Cost Method is used to determine costs. Under
this funding method, a normal cost rate is determined as a level percent of pay for each
active Plan member and then summed to produce the total normal cost for this Plan.
The unfunded actuarial liability is the difference between the actuarial liability and the
actuarial value of assets.

Assumptions

The demographic actuarial assumptions are the Teacher assumptions that were
used by the Maine Public Employees Retirement System State Employee and Teacher
Retirement Program valuation at June 30, 2021 and are based on the experience study
covering the period from June 30, 2015 through June 30, 2020. The proposed
assumptions were adopted by the Board of Trustees at their March 11, 2021.
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The economic assumptions are based on GASB 75 paragraph 36. Since the
Plan is not funded via a qualified trust, the discount rates are selected based on the 20-
year tax-exempt bond buyer rates as of the measurement dates. The other economic
assumptions, ie trend rates, were developed based on historical information, national
trend surveys and professional judgement:

Discount Rate - 2.16% per annum for year-end 2021 reporUng, 2.21% per annum
for year-end 2020 reporting.

Health care trend assumptions used were developed using the Society of
Actuaries (SOA) Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model version 2021_b. The following
assumptions were applied in this model as below:

Trend Assumption Inputs

Variable Rate

Rate of Inflation 2.00%
Rate of Growth in Real Income/GOP per capita 2030+ 1.23%
Extra Trend due to Taste/Technology 2030+ 1.10%
Expected Health Share of GDP 2030 20.0%
Health Share of GDP Resistance Point 25.0%
Year for Limiting Cost Growth to GDP Growth 2040

The SOA Long-Run Medical Cost Trend Model and its baseline projection are
based on an econometric analysis of historical U.S. medical expenditures and the
judgments of experts in the field. The long-run baseline projection and input variables
have been developed under the guidance of the SOA Project Oversight Group. Sample
medical trends are listed in the table below.

Pre-Medicare - Initial trend of 6.21% applied in FYE 2020 and 6.83%
applied in EYE 2022 grading over 18 years to 3.25% per annum.

Medicare - Initial trend of 0.0% applied in EYE 2021 and 6.30% applied in
FYE 2022 grading over 18 years to 3.25% per annum.

Future plan changes - Assumes that the current Plan and cost-sharing structure
remain in place for all future years.

Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the actuary for demographic
purposes are the assumptions that were adopted by Maine Public Employees
Retirement System State Employee and Teacher Retirement Program at June 30, 2021

71



TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 19- OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT (OPEB) MEDICAL PLAN
(CONTINUED)

and based on the experience study covering the period from June 30, 2015 through
June 30, 2020. The proposed assumptions were adopted by the Board of Trustees at
their March 11, 2021 meeting. As of June 30, 2021, they are as follows:

Retirement Rates - Rates vary for plans based on age and service

Rates of Turnover - None

Disability Incidence - None

Retirement Contribution Increases - Assumed to increase at the same rate as
health care trend rates

Age Difference of Spouses - Husbands are assumed to be 3 years older than
wives

Salary Increase Rate - 2.75% per year

Salaries - Salaries were not provided by the client. Assumed salaries are inferred
using the Teachers Age/Service Salary scatter from the Maine State Teachers
Retirement System’s salary age/service scatter from the June 30, 2020 Maine
Public Employees Retirement System State Employee and Teacher Retirement
Program valuation. Based on the dates of hire assumed above and the
participant’s actual age, pay was assigned using the salary age service scatter,
unless otherwise supplied by the district group during its review of the active
data.

Dates of Hire - Were not available from the client and were available from the
State Retirement Agency. Dates of hire were inferred using the Maine State
Retirement System’s Age/Service scatter from the June 30, 2020 Maine Public
Employees Retirement System State Employee and Teacher Retirement
Program valuation. Those under 1 year of service, the date was assumed to be
January 1, 2020 and all other groups were assumed to be hired on July 1 of each
service midpoint.

Rate of Mortality:

General Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 General Headcount Weighted Mortality
Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021
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Teacher Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Teachers Headcount Weighted
Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021

Surviving Spouses: SOA Pub-2010 Contingent Survivor Headcount
Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP-2021

Disabled Retirees: SOA Pub-2010 Non-Safety Disabled Retiree
Headcount Weighted Mortality Table fully generational using Scale MP
2021

Significant actuarial assumptions employed by the actuary for claims and
expense purposes are the based on the actual community rated premiums of the entire
group. As of June 30, 2021, they are as follows:

Monthly Per Capital Claims and Expense Cost - Claims are based on community
rated premiums through July 1, 2020 and projects through June 30, 2021 and
associate enrollment in the various options offered. Annual administrative and
claims adjudication expenses are assumed to be included in the annual
premiums.

Medical Plan Election - Employees are assumed to continue in their current
medical plan for their entire career. 50% of retirees are assumed to switch from
the Choice Plan to the Standard Plan.

Medicare Eligibility - Assumed to be age 65, with the exception of retirees over
age 65 who are not in the Medicare Advantage Plan are assumed to never be
eligible for Medicare, all current actives with a hire date before March 31, 1986
are assumed to never be eligible for Medicare.

Changes in Total OPEB Liability

Changes in total OPEB liability are recognized in OPEB expense for the year
ended June 30, 2022 with the following exceptions:

Differences between Expected and Actual Experience

The difference between expected and actual experience are recognized in OPEB
expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed period equal to the
average expected remaining service lives of active and inactive members in each plan.
As of July 1, 2021, this average is 8 years. The first year is recognized as OPEB
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expense and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of resources or
deferred inflows of resources. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, there were no
differences between expected and actual experience.

Changes in Assumptions

Differences due to changes in assumptions about future economic, demographic
or claim and expense factors or other inputs are recognized in OPEB expense over the
average expected remaining service life of all active and inactive Plan members. As of
July 1, 2021, this average is 8 years. The first year is recognized as OPEB expense
and the remaining years are shown as either deferred outflows of resources or deferred
inflows of resources. The amortization period was six years for year ending June 30,
2022. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, there were no changes in assumptions.

Differences between Projected and Actual Earnings on OPEB Plan Investments

Differences between projected and actual investment earnings are recognized in
OPEB expense using a straight-line amortization method over a closed five-year period.
The first year is recognized as OPEB expense and the remaining years are shown as
either deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources.

OPEB Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Additional financial and actuarial information with respect to this Plan can be
found at the Town Office at 197 Penobscot Avenue, Millinocket, Maine 04462.

NOTE 20 - CONTINGENCIES

With regard to pending legal claims or any unasserted claims, it is not feasible at
this time to predict or determine their outcome. Management believes, however, that
settlement amounts, if any, will not have a material adverse effect on the Town’s
financial position.

The Town participates in various intergovernmental grant programs which may
be subject to future program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives.
Accordingly, the Town’s compliance with applicable grant requirement may be
established at some future date. The amount, if any, of any liabilities arising from the
disallowance of expenditures or ineligibility of grant revenues cannot be determined at
this time.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2022

NOTE 21 - RISK MANAGEMENT - PARTICIPATION IN A PUBLIC ENTITY RISK
POOL

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to
and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the
Town carries commercial insurance or participates in a public entity and self-insured risk
pool sponsored by the Maine Municipal Association.

Based on the coverage provided by the insurance purchased, the Town is not
aware of any material actual or potential claim liabilities which should be recorded as of
June 30, 2022. There were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from that of
the prior year and amounts of settlements have not exceeded insurance coverage in the
past three years.

NOTE 22 - COMPARATIVE DATA/RECLASSIFICATIONS

Comparative total data for the prior year have been presented in selected
sections of the accompanying financial statements in order to provide an understanding
of the changes in the Town’s financial position and operations. Also, certain amounts
presented in the prior year’s data have been reclassified to be consistent with the
current years presentation.
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Required Supplementary Information

Required supplementary information includes financial information and disclosures
that are required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board but are not considered
a part of the basic financial statements. Such information includes:

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual -

General Fund

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and Actual -

Education Fund

• Schedule

• Schedule

• Schedule

• Schedule

• Schedule
Plan

• Schedule

• Schedule
Plan

• Schedule of Contributions - OPEB

OPEB Liability - Set Plan

- MMEHT Plan

and Related Ratios - MMEHT

• Notes to Required Supplementary Information

Pension Liabilityof Proportionate Share of the Net

of Contributions - Pensions

of Proportionate Share of the Net

of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

of Changes in Net OPEB Liability

of Changes in Net OPEB

of Changes in Net OPEB

Liability

Liability

- MEABT Plan

and Related Ratios - MEABT
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SCHEDULE 1
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1

Resources (Inflows):
General tax revenue
Intergovernmental revenue
Charges for services
Investment income

Other revenue
Transfers from other funds

Amounts Available for Appropriation

_______________ _______________ _______________

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):

General government
Public safety
Public works
Fringe benefits
Community services

County tax
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Overlay
Grant funds/misc accounts

Transfers to other funds

Total Charges to Appropriations

_______________ _______________ _______________

Budgetary Fund Balance. June 30

Utilization of assigned fund balance

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

Budgeted Amounts Actual

Variance
Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 4.720,402 $ 4,720,402 $ 4,720,402 $ -

6,535,459 6,565,459 6,323,238 (242,221)
2,665,722 3,088,748 3,153,430 64,682

665,058 668,058 687,190 19,132

7,200 7.200 10,817 3,617

126,407 220.366 415,471 195,105

4,655 4,655 - (4,655)

14.754,903 15.274.888 15,310,548 35,660

783.974 1,044,410 1,009,021 35,389

1,758,530 2,214.154 2,086,071 128,083

1.252,755 1.631.789 1,534,781 97,008

994.155 16,682 10,361 6,321

544.981 742,407 701,749 40.658

275,516 275,516 275,516 -

111,316 111,316 111,316 —

65,427 65,427 65,426 1

175.853 175,853 - 175,853

1,208,918 1,592,908 638,934 953.974

2,908,076 2.908,076 2,908,076 -

10.079,501 10.778.538 9,341,251 1,437,287

S 4,675.402 $ 4.496,350 $ 5,969,297 $ 1,472,947

S 45,000 $ 224.052 $ - $ (224,052)
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SCHEDULE 1A
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - EDUCATION FUND

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Budgetary Fund Balance, July 1
Revenues (Inflows):

Local assessments
Intergovernmental revenues
Charges for services
Other revenue
Transfers from other funds

Amounts Available for Appropriation

_________________________________________

Charges to Appropriations (Outflows):
Regular instruction
Special education
Other instruction
Student and staff support
System administration
School administration
Transportation
Facilities maintenance
Debt service:

Principal
Interest

Transfers to other funds
Total Charges to Appropriations

______________ ________________________________________

Budgetary Fund Balance, June 30

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
78

Budgeted Amounts Actual
Variance
Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 595,116 $ 595,116 $ 595,116 $ -

2,908,076 - - -

3,769,889 3,769,889 3,831,157 61,268
202,800 202,800 71,879 (130,921)

91,000 91,000 112,957 21,957
203,632 3,111,708 2,952,036 (1 59,672)

7,770,513 7,770,513 7,563,145 (207,368)

2,614,728 2,61 0,571 2,329,474 281,097
1,304,178 1,304,178 1,189,471 114,707

321,488 321,488 248,266 73,222
397,446 397,446 378,690 1 8,756
779,081 779,081 730,912 48,169
357,817 357,817 327,612 30,205
267,065 267,065 259,627 7,438

1,026,386 1,026,386 984,501 41,885

93,208 93,208 93,208 -

4,000 4,000 3,716 284
10,000 14,157 14,157 -

7,1 75,397 7,1 75,397 6,559,634 61 5,763

$ 595,116 $ 595,116 $ 1,003,511 $ 408,395
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Changes of Assumptions

MEPERS PLD Plan:

The discount rate was reduced from 675% to 650%. In addition, the salary
increases for the plan, increased from 2.75% to 2.75% - 11.48% per year.

MEPERS SET Plan:

The discount rate was reduced from 6.75% to 6.50%. In addition, the salary
increases for the plan, increased from 2.75% to 2.80% - 13.03% per year.

MMEHT Plan:

The discount rate was updated to reflect the December 30, 2021 Bond Buyer 20-
Bond GO Index. The ultimate trend assumption was reduced to reflect the reduction in the
Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index.

The following demographic assumptions were updated based on the June 30, 2021
experience study:

Mortality, termination, retirement and salary rates.

The enrollment participation for plans with no employer subsidy was update for
ages 65-70.

There was a change in the discount rate from 2.12% to 2.06% per GASB 75
discount rate selection. In addition, medical and prescription drug trend arrays were
updated.

MEABT Plan:

There was a change in the discount rate from 2.21% to 2.16% per GASB 75
discount rate selection.

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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Other Supplementary Information

Other supplementary information includes financial statements and schedules not
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, nor a part of the basic
financial statements, but are presented for purposes of additional analysis.

• Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Budgetary Basis - Budget and
Actual - General Fund Revenues

• Schedule of Departmental Operations - General Fund

• Combining Balance Sheet - Capital Reserve Funds

• Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Capital Reserve Funds

• Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

• Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Governmental Funds

• Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

• Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Special Revenue Funds

• Combining Balance Sheet - Nonmajor Permanent Funds

• Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in
Fund Balances - Nonmajor Permanent Funds
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE
SCHEDULE A

BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - BUDGETARY BASIS
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - GENERAL FUND REVENUES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

Variance

Original Final Positive

Budget Budget Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
General tax revenues

Property taxes
Vehicle excise taxes

Boat excise taxes
Intergovernmental revenues

Homestead exemption
State revenue sharing
B ETE
Tree growth
Veterans
LRAP
General assistance
Airport CARES grant
ARPA
Other

Charges for ser’Aces:
Recreation fees
Economic de.elopment
Town clerk fees
Planning fees
Solid waste/recycling

Ambulance
Fire department

Police department
Public works
Airport
Cemetery

Investment income:
Investment income

Other income:
Interest/fees on taxes
Payment in lieu of taxes
Proceeds from sale of assets
Rent
Insurances
Misc grants
Other

Transfers from other funds

Special revenue funds

Total Re’.enues

Use of fund balance

Total

$ 5,810,459 $ 5,810,459 $ 5,487,092 $ (323,367)

750,000 750.000 830,758 80,758

5,000 5.000 5,388 388

709.247 709,247 709,247 -

850.000 965,000 1,586,205 621,205

52.319 52,319 52,381 62

17,000 17,000 25,863 8,863

10,600 10,600 7,720 (2,880)
41,912 41,912 45,288 3,376

15,000 15,000 4,778 (10,222)

13,000 13,000 13,000 -

- - 449,600 449,600

956,644 1,264,670 259.348 (1.005,322)

1,000 1,000 1.100 100

10,000 10,000 5,000 (5,000)

70,050 70.050 75,585 5,535

2,250 2,250 3,385 1,135

120,436 120,436 134,619 14,183

307,546 307,546 306,447 (1,099)

5,451 5,451 8,814 3,363
-

- 90 90

33,350 36,350 29,500 (6,850)

94,975 94,975 91,925 (3,050)

20,000 20,000 30,725 10,725

7,200 7,200 10.817 3,617

55,000 55,000 35,659 (19,341)

18,000 18,000 25,006 7,006
18,000 18,000 227 (17,773)
29,500 29,500 29.500 -

64 64

93,959 217.749 123,790

5,907 107.266 101,3595,907

4,655 4,655 - (4,655)

10,034,501 10,554,486 10,590,146 35,660

45,000 224,052 - (224,052)

$ 10,079,501 $ 10,778,538 $ 10,590,146 $ (188,392)
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Capital Reserve Funds

Capital reserve funds are established to account for financial resources to be used
for the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities, other than those financed by
proprietary or trust fund.
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SCHEDULE E
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2022

AS S ETS

Cash and cash equivalents
Investments

Accounts receivable (net of allowance
for uncollectibles)

Due from other governments
Inventory

Due from other funds

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Accrued payroll

Due to other funds
TOTAL LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred revenue

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

FUND BALANCES

Nonspendable
Restricted

Committed

Assigned
Unassigned

_________________ _________________ _________________

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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Special

Re’ie n u e

Funds

Total Nonmajor

Permanent Governmental

Funds Funds

$ 168,910 $ 42,984 $ 211,894

425,006 - 425,006

321,989 - 321,989

535,946 - 535,946

25,509 - 25,509

69,891 - 69,891

$ 1,547,251 $ 42,984 $ 1,590,235

$ 11,944 $ - $ 11,944
76,959 - 76,959

371,724 3,800 375,524

460,627 3,800 464,427

57,954 - 57,954
57,954 - 57,954

25,509 16,401 41,910

823,277 22,783 846,060
74,025 - 74,025

105,859 - 105,859

1,028,670 39,184 1,067,854

$ 1,547,251 $ 42,984 $ 1,590,235



TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE
SCHEDULE F

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES
BALANCES - NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

REVENUES
Intergo’sernmental revenues

Charges for ser’vices
In\iestment income, net of unrealized gains/(Iosses)

Interest income
Other income

TOTAL REVENUES

EXPENDITURES

Education
TOTAL EXPENDITURES

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER (UNDER)

EXPENDITURES

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in

Transfers (out)
TOTAL OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCES

IN FUND

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.

Special Total Nonmajor

Reenue Permanent Governmental

Funds Funds Funds

$ 2,021,985 $ - $ 2,021,985

28,628 - 28,628

- 77 77

22,343 - 22,343

167,978 - 167,978

2,240,934 77 2,241,011

2,205,210 - 2,205,210

2,205,210 - 2,205,210

35,724 77 35,801

14,157 - 14,157

(43,960) - (43,960)

(29,803) - (29,803)

5,921 77 5,998

1,022,749 39,107 1,061,856

$ 1,028,670 $ 39,184 $ 1,067,854

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1

FUND BALANCES, JUNE 30
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Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are established to account for the proceeds of specific
revenue sources (other than expendable trusts or for major capital projects) that are legally
restricted to expenditures for specific purposes.
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Permanent Funds

Permanent funds are used to account for assets held by the Town of Millinocket,
Maine that are legally restricted pursuant to Title 30-A, §5653 of the Maine State Statutes,
as amended and unless otherwise specified, only earnings and not principal, may be used
for purposes that benefit the Town or its citizenry. These funds have been established for
various purposes including the preservation and/or maintenance of cemeteries.
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SCHEDULE I
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET - NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents

TOTAL ASSETS

LLBILITIES
Due to other funds

TOTAL LIABILITIES

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable
Restricted
Committed
Assigned
Unassigned

TOTAL FUND BALANCES

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND
BALANCES

JUNE 30, 2022

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
104

Cemetery Peluso Ministerial
Perpetual Welfare and School

Fund Trust Fund Total

$ 4,419 $ 15,930 $ 22,635 $ 42,984
$ 4,419 $ 15930 $ 22,635 $ 42,984

$ - $ - $ 3,800 $ 3,800
-

- 3,800 3,800

1,401 4,000 11,000 16,401
3,018 11,930 7,835 22,783

4,419 15,930 18,835 39,184

$ 4,419 $ 15,930 $ 22,635 $ 42,984



SCHEDULE J
TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

COMBINING SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, CHANGES IN FUND
BALANCES - NONMAJOR PERMANENT FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Cemetery Peluso Ministerial
Perpetual Welfare and School

Fund Trust Fund Total
REVENUES

Investment income, net of unrealized gains/(losses) $ 8 $ 29 $ 40 $ 77
TOTAL REVENUES 8 29 40 77

EXPENDITURES
Other - - -

TOTAL EXPENDITURES - - -

NETCHANGE IN FUND BALANCES 8 29 40 77

FUND BALANCES, JULY 1 4,411 15,901 18,795 39,107

FUND BALANCES, JUNE30 $ 4,419 $ 15,930 $ 18,835 $ 39,184

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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Federal Compliance

Federal compliance includes financial information and reports that are required in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and/or the Uniform Guidance in
accordance with 2 CFR § 515. Such financial information and reports include:

• Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

• Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

• Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial
Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

• Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance or Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance Required by the Uniform Guidance

• Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

See accompanying independent auditor’s report and notes to financial statements.
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

US. Department of Agriculture
Passed-through State of Maine - Department of Education’

Child Nutrition Cluster:
School Breakfast Program
Donated Commodities
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
National School Lunch Program
Summer Food Service Program for Children
Summer Food Service Program for Children

Subtotat Child Nutrition Cluster

Pandemic EBT Administrative Costs

Total US Department of Agricjlture

3 -2 3-0 0 3 0-0 2 3-
Airport Improvement Program and COVID-1 9 Airports Programs

Airport Improvement Program and COVID-19 Airports Programs

Airport Improvement Program and COVID-1 9 Airports Programs

Total U.S Department of Transportation

U.S Department of Housing and Urban Development
Passed-through State of Maine - Department of Economic
D eve Iopm e nt

Community Dev&opment Block Grants/States program and Non-
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii
Community Development Blcck Grants/States program and Non-
Entitlement Grants in Hawaii

Total US Department of Housing and Urban Development

US Environmental Protection Agency
Direct Funding

Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster:
Clean Water Revolving Loan Fund

Subtotal Clean Water State Revolving Fund Cluster

Total US Environmental Protection Agency

US Department ot Education
Passed-through State ot Maine - Department of Education

Title I Grants to Local Educational Agencies

Special Education Cluster (IDEA):
Special Education Grants to Stales

Subtotal Special Education Cluster (IDEA)

Rural Education

Education Stabilization Fund
Education Stabilization Fund
Educat,on Stabilizahon Fund

20106 2021
3-23-0030-021-

3-23-0030-024 -

20.106 2021

N/A

13.000

N/A 740,536 -

925.820 -

925,820 -

N/A 1.166.701 -

1.166.701 -

1.166.701 -

3046 163,475 -

163,475 -

357,362 -

113,601
639.702

______________

1,110,665 -

1,558,560 -

$ 4.073,556 $ -

Federal Grantor Federal Pass-through Expenditures
Pass-through Grantor AL Grantor Federal to
Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients

10553 N/A $ 86,829 $ -

10555 N/A 12,343 -

10,555 N/A 14,452 -

10555 3020 159,782 -

10555 N/A 8.353 -

10559 N/A 32,233 -

10559 3016 3,304 -

317,296 -

10649 N/A 1,228 -

318,524 -

U.S Department of Transportation
Passed-through State of Marie - Department of Transportation

20106 2020 76468 -

l4A83 -

103.951 -

103,951 -

185.284 -14 .228

14228

66 458

84010

64027

84,356 3305

84.425D 7006
84.425D N/A
84.425U N/A

3107 268,553 -

Total US. Department of Education

TOTAL FEDERAL ASSISTANCE

15,867

_____________
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

1. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule)
includes the federal award activity of the Town of Millinocket, Maine under programs of the
federal government for the year ended June 30, 2022. The information in this Schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations
Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles and Audit Requirements
for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Because the Schedule presents only a selected
portion of the operations of the Town of Millinocket, Maine, it is not intended to and does
not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash flows of the Town of
Millinocket, Maine.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

a. Expenditures reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of
accounting. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles
contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or 0MB Circular A-87, Cost
Principles for State, Local and Indian Tribal Governments, wherein certain
types of expenditures are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

b. The Town of Millinocket, Maine has not elected to use the 10 percent de
minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Town Council
Town of Millinocket
Millinocket, Maine

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained
in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, business-type activities,
each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of
Millinocket, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022 and the related notes to
the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s
basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2023.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered
the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control)
to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s
internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Town of Millinocket, Maine’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control
does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A
material weakness is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control,
such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented or detected and corrected on a timely basis.
A significant deficiency is a deficiency or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
attention by those charged with governance.

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
Tel: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 929-4609

www.rhrsmith.com
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Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the
first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal
control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these
limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we
consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have
not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Town of Millinocket,
Maine’s financial statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant agreements,
noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit and accordingly, we do not express such an
opinion.

The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters
that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. We noted certain
other matters that we reported to management of the Town of Millinocket in a separate
letter dated March 28, 2023.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal
control and compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral
part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication
is not suitable for any other purpose.

if StS I Caa

Buxton, Maine
March 28, 2023

110



1*IR
SMITH
& COMPANY
(nIf,cd P.,bIir

Thvv,, Experi a & Inlegniy

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE

REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Town CouncH
Town of MUlinocket
Millinocket, Maine

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program

Qualified and Unmodified Opinions

We have audited the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the 0MB Compliance Supplement that could have a
direct and material effect on each of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2022. The Town of Millinocket, Maine’s major
federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

Qualified Opinion on ALN 84. 425D Education Stabilization Fund

In our opinion, except for the noncompliance described in the Basis for Qualified
and Unmodified Opinions section of our report, the Town of Millinocket, Maine complied, in
all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on ALN 84.425D Education Stabilization Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2022.

Unmodified Opinion on Each of the Other Major Federal Programs

In our opinion, the Town of Millinocket, Maine complied, in all material respects, with
the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and
material effect on each of its other major federal programs identified in the summary of
auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs
for the year ended June 30, 2022.

Basis for Qualified and Unmodified Opinions

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to
financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States (Government Auditing Standards); and the audit
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative

3 Old Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
Tel: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (20) 929-4609

www.rhrsrnith.com
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Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the Town of Millinocket, Maine and to meet
our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating
to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Town Millinocket,
Maine’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above.

Matter Giving Rise to Qualified Opinion on ALN 84.4250 Education Stabilization Fund

As described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs, the
Town of Millinocket, Maine did not comply with requirements regarding ALN 84.425D
Education Stabilization Fund as described in finding number 2022-001 - Allowable
Costs/Cost Principles.

Compliance with such requirements is necessary, in our opinion, for the Town of
Millinocket, Maine to comply with the requirements applicable to that program.

Management’s Responsibility

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above
and for the design, implementation and maintenance of effective internal control over
compliance with the requirements of laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of
contracts or grant agreements applicable to the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s federal
programs.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material
noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due
to fraud or error, and express an opinion on the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s compliance
based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect
material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance
resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the
Town of Millinocket, Maine’s compliance with the requirements of each major federal
program as a whole.
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In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards,
and the Uniform Guidance,
we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout
the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or
error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the Town of
Millinocket, Maine’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred to above
and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the
circumstances.

• Obtain an understanding of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on internal control over
compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s
internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant
deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal control over compliance that we identified
during the audit.

Other Matters

The results of our auditing procedures disclosed other instances of noncompliance
which are required to be reported in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and which are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-
001. Our opinion on each major federal program is not modified with respect to these
matters.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures
on the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s response to the noncompliance findings identified in
our compliance audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned
costs. The Town of Millinocket, Maine’s response was not subjected to the other auditing
procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express no opinion on
the response.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose
described in the Auditor’s Responsibility section above and was not designed to identify all
deficiencies in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance and therefore, material
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weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, as
discussed below, we did identify certain deficiencies in internal control over compliance
that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation
of a control over compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal
course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely
basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement
of a federal program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

A significant deficiency in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in internal
control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with
governance. We consider the deficiencies in internal control over compliance described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2022-001 to be
significant deficiency.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is
expressed.

Government Auditing Standards requires the auditor to perform limited procedures
on the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s response to the internal control over compliance
findings identified in our audit described in the accompanying schedule of findings and
questioned costs. The Town of Millinocket, Maine’s response was not subjected to the
other auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe
the scope of our testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing
based on the requirements of the Uniform Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable
for any other purpose.

S I Cats
Buxton, Maine
March 28, 2023
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section I - Summary of Auditor’s Results

• Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued : Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
• Material weakness(es) identified?

_____yes

X no
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified?

_____yes

X no
• Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

_____yes

X no

• Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:

• Material weakness(es) identified?

_____yes

X no
• Significant deficiency(ies) identified? X yes

______no

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Qualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with §200.516 of Uniform Guidance? X yes

_____no

Identification of major programs:

AL Numbers Name of Federal Program or Cluster
14.228 Community Development Block Grants/State’s Program and

Non-Entitlement Grants in Hawaii
66.458 Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds
84.425D/84.425U Education Stabilization Fund

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and B: $750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes

_____no

Section II - Financial Statement Findings

None
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TOWN OF MILLINOCKET, MAINE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

Section III - Federal Awards Findings and Questioned Costs

SIGNIFICANT DEFICIENCIES

2022-001 - Allowable Costs/Cost Principles

Federal Program Information:
Department of Education:

ALN - 84.425D - Education Stabilization Fund

Criteria: The following CFR(s) apply to this finding: 2 CFR 200.430(i)(1(vii)

Condition: During audit procedures, it was identified that the School Department
certifications for time and effort records were missing or incomplete.

Cause: The School Department does not have the necessary internal controls over
compliance.

Effect: The School Department is not obtaining the required employee certifications that
100% of their time was spent on the grant cost objective ensuring that charges to the
program reflect an accurate account of the employee’s time and effort devoted to the
program.

Identification of Questioned Costs: None identified.

Context: The School Department does not collect time certifications for the employees
that were paid with the federal funds.

Repeat Finding: This is not a repeat finding.

Recommendation: It is recommended that the School Department implement internal
control processes and procedures to ensure that time certifications are completed at the
period end to ensure charges reflect an accurate account of the employee’s time devoted
to the program.

Views of Responsible Officials and Corrective Action Plan: Please see the Corrective
Action Plan issued by the School Department.
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State Compliance

State compliance includes financial information and reports that are presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by Title 20-A MRSA §6051 of the Maine
Revised Statutes as amended. Such financial information and reports include:

• Independent Auditor’s Report on State Requirements

• Reconciliation of Audit Adjustments to Annual Financial Data Submitted to
the Maine Education Financial System
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON STATE REQUIREMENTS

Town Council
Town of Millinocket, Maine
Millinocket, Maine

We have audited the financial statements of Town of Millinocket, Maine for the year
ended June 30, 2022 and have issued our report thereon dated March 28, 2023. Our audit
was made in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and applicable state and federal laws relating to financial and compliance
audits and, accordingly, included such tests of the accounting records and such other
auditing procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

In connection with our audit, we reviewed the budgetary controls that are in place
and have reviewed the annual financial report that was submitted to the Maine Department
of Education for accuracy. In addition, we have reviewed the Town of Millinocket, Maine’s
compliance with applicable provisions of the Maine Finance Act as noted under MRSA
Title 20A, section 6051 as we considered necessary in obtaining our understanding.

The results of our procedures indicate that with respect to the items tested, the
Town of Millinocket, Maine complied, in all material respects, with the provisions referred
to in the preceding paragraph. With respect to items not tested, nothing came to our
attention that caused us to believe that the Town of Millinocket, Maine was in
noncompliance with or in violation of, those provisions.

Management has determined that adjustments were necessary to the fiscal books
of the Town of Millinocket, Maine and have attached the following schedule as it relates to
the reconciliation of audit adjustments to the updated annual financial data submitted to
the Maine Education Financial System maintained at the Maine Department of Education.

This report is intended solely for the information of the Town Council, School Board,
management and the Maine Department of Education, This report is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than the specified parties.

Ji I Caaa4
Buxton, Maine
March 28, 2023

3 Od Orchard Road, Buxton, Maine 04093
‘Id: (800) 300-7708 (207) 929-4606 Fax: (207) 029-4609
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